

© 2025, English Twenty Club. All rights reserved.

The information in this book has been compiled from English Twenty Club and NRA records. The English Twenty Club has made every effort to ensure the accuracy of the information in this book, but the Club assumes no responsibility or liability for any errors.

This is a restricted publication that is only for distribution within the membership of the English Twenty Club.

# Contents

Contents	iii
Preface	.vii
Club Information	1
Officers of the Club	1
Council	1
Non-Council Roles	2
Captains	
Council of the National Match	3
English Target Shooting Federation	3
Presidents and Secretaries from 2000	3
Fixtures for 2025	
English Twenty Club Rules	
Bye-laws	
1 - Shooting Disciplines	
2 - Approval of Membership	
3 - Subscriptions	
4 - Election Procedure for District and Divisional Superintendents	10
5 - Prize Winners	
6 - School and Cadet Unit Affiliations	11
7 - District and Division Jewels	
8 - Selection of England Team Captains	12
National Match Captaincy	12
Mackinnon Captaincy	
UKAF Captaincy	
Procedure for Nomination and Selection of National, Mackinnon	12
and UKAF Captains	13
Lawrence Match Captaincy	
RAFTRC v Home Countries Match Captaincies	
European Long Range Team Championship	
Other 'Home Country' Matches	14
Overseas Matches and Team tours (TR only)	1/
Other Information	1/
Protection of Children and Vulnerable Adults in Target Shooting	
Bisley Clubhouse	
President's Report for the Year 2024	
Accounts for the Year to 31 August 2024	
Treasurer's Report	
Secretary's Report for the Year 2024	20 22
English Twenty Lions Report for the Year 2024	22
Minutes of the Annual General Meeting	20
Minutes of the Annual General Meeting Merchandise	
TR Events	
English Twenty Club Prize Meeting	
Past Winners	30

Results for 2024	
The Club Championship	32
Rules	32
Past Winners	32
Result for 2024	33
The Varley	34
Rules	34
Past Winners	34
Result for 2024	34
English County Rifle Championship	35
General Rules	35
KGV Heats Organisation	38
Results Summary	38
KGV Results for 2024	39
Heats	
KGV Final	40
Result of the Grist Cup 2024	40
National Match	41
Rules of the "National Challenge Trophy"	41
Guidelines for National Team Selection	44
Results Summary	
Result for 2024	
Captains and Adjutants	45
Coaches	46
Shooters and Reserves	
Letter from 2025 Captain	50
Mackinnon	51
Results Summary	
Result for 2024	53
Captains and Adjutants	53
Coaches	
Shooters and Reserves	54
Other England Events	
Lawrence Match	
Results Summary	
Result for 2024	58
Captains and Adjutants	58
Coaches	
Shooters and Reserves	
European Long Range Team Championship	62
Result for 2024	
Captains and Adjutants	62
Coaches	63
Shooters	
Under 25 Home Countries Invitation Match	65

Result for 2024	65
Commonwealth Games	65
Managers	65
Shooters	65
England Touring Teams	
Captains	66
Vice-Captains	
Adjutants	
Coaches	
Shooters	
England Team to USA 2024	
The America Match	
English Twenty Club Matches	
Matches v RAFTRC, Scotland, Wales and Ireland	
Short Range Match Result for 2024	
Long Range Match Result for 2024	
Match v UK Armed Forces and Home Countries	
Result for 2024	
Match v Welsh XX Club	
Result for 2024	
GB Matches	
Kolapore	
Results Summary	
Result for 2024	
Captains and Adjutants	
Shooters and Reserves	
Palma Match	
Results Summary	
Result for 2024	
Captains and Adjutants	
Shooters and Reserves	
300m Events	
300m Championship	
Past Winners	
Result for 2024	
300m Shooting F-Class Events	
The F-Class International Team Match	
GR Events	
Gallery Rifle Division	
Gallery Rifle Matches	
International Team Matches at the Phoenix Meeting	
Scotland v England v Wales	
England v Wales v Scotland	
Wales v England	
vvaico v Liiyiailu	07

The GR Home Countries National Match	87
Results Summary	87
Result for 2024	
LBP and LBR Matches	
International Team Matches at the Phoenix Meeting	89
Results for 2024	
Scotland v Englandv Wales	89
England v Wales v Scotland	89
National Championships	89
Captains and Adjutants	
Home Countries National Match Shooters	90
Phoenix International Match Shooters	91
Phoenix International LBR and LBP Shooters	91
List of Members for 2024	93
General Data Protection Regulation	93
List of Members by District	93
School and Cadet Unit Affiliations	97
Index	98

#### Preface

This book contains details of events held in 2024; officers, captains and adjutants for 2025; records for events from 2000 and accounts for 2024.

For information on matches and competitions before 2000, see the English Twenty Club Records Summary 1864-2000. For complete rolls see the English Twenty Club Archive Rolls document on the web site.

Anyone discovering an error should report it by email to the editor (yearbook@englishtwenty.org.uk).

The Club's web site is at:

http://www.englishtwenty.org.uk

The site carries current information, the results of events shortly after they take place, and downloadable forms. You can also download a PDF version of this yearbook from the members' section.

Submissions for the web site should be sent to the web master (webmaster@englishtwenty.org.uk) who may ask for the Honorary Secretary's approval.

Email addresses for representatives of the Club are shown throughout the yearbook.

# Club Information

#### Patron

Position vacant following the sad demise of H.R.H. The Duke of Edinburgh, K.G., K.T.

#### President

M.E. Barr, president@englishtwenty.org.uk

#### **Past Presidents**

Dr R. Pizer<sup>1</sup> Prof. A.R. Horrocks **sc2**<sup>1</sup>

#### **Vice-Presidents**

A.J.C.B. de Launay<sup>1</sup> K.O. Pugh **sm**<sup>1</sup> A.J.D. Saunders<sup>1</sup> P. Merry **GC**<sup>1</sup> S.J. Comins<sup>1</sup> C.M. Brooks<sup>1</sup> R.P Rosling **GM** 

# Council

#### **Elected Members**

2025: G.P. Nelson, S.N.S. Penrose, vacancy 2026: L.E. Haley, M. Liversage, vacancy 2027: A.I. Ashworth, M.R. Fugeman, J.G. Trembath

#### **Representatives of:**

UK Armed Forces: L.S. Crisp Territorial Army and Council For Cadet Rifle Shooting: M. Liversage British Young Shooters Association: A. Sadler

#### **Honorary Secretary**

A.J. Leech, secretary@englishtwenty.org.uk

#### Honorary Membership Secretary

G.P. Nelson, membership@englishtwenty.org.uk

#### **Honorary Treasurer**

J.R. Tuck, treasurer@englishtwenty.org.uk

#### Chairman

M. Liversage, chairman@englishtwenty.org.uk

<sup>1</sup> Executive status

#### District Superintendents' Representative on Council S.N.S. Penrose

300 metre Divisional Superintendent

R.R. Warren, ds300m@englishtwenty.org.uk

**EPA Divisional Superintendent** 

J. Warner, dsepa@englishtwenty.org.uk

**F** Class Divisional Superintendent

D.N. Kent, dsfclass@englishtwenty.org.uk

Gallery Rifle Divisional Superintendent

 $N.J.\ Francis,\ gallery rifle @englishtwenty.org.uk$ 

# **Non-Council Roles**

Liaison Officer to Surrey Police A.J. Leech

Spring Meeting Organiser

L.E. Haley springmeeting@englishtwenty.org.uk

Competitions Secretary

 ${\sf L.E.}\ Haley,\ competitions @englishtwenty.org.uk$ 

Editor of Yearbook S.N.S. Penrose, yearbook@englishtwenty.org.uk

> Under 25 Representative A. Sadler, u25@englishtwenty.org.uk

Independent Accounts Examiner P.A.E. Charlton

# Captains

of England and English Twenty Club Teams 2025

	Captain	Adjutant
National:	M. Liversage	G.P. Nelson
Mackinnon:	N.R.J. Brasier	A.C. Abrahams
Under 25 NRA match:	H.J. Waldern	G.P.C. Bramwell
v UK Armed Forces:	M.G. Whicher	S.M.E. Hayton
GR HC National Match:	S. Lane	Vice: D. Morrow
Trinidad Tour 2026	M. Liversage	A.J. Leech
		J.W.E. Lewis

# **Council of the National Match**

Honorary Secretary: E.R.T. Jeens

The following represent England on the Council of the National Match:

The Captains of the National and Mackinnon teams and the President or his nominee.

# **English Target Shooting Federation**

Chairman: P. Underhill

Honorary Secretary: D. Goodfellow

The following represent the Club on the English Target Federation Shooting Council: A.J.D. Saunders

# **Presidents and Secretaries from 2000**

#### Presidents

- 1998 2003 A.St.G. Tucker
- 2004 2015 Prof. A.R. Horrocks
- 2015 M.E. Barr

#### **Honorary Secretaries**

- 1996 2002 A.J.D. Saunders
- 2002 2005 Mrs J.A. Cane
- 2005 2011 Prof. A.R. Horrocks
- 2011 2020 M. Liversage
- 2020 A.J. Leech

# Fixtures for 2025

17 – 18 May	Matches versus RAFTRC, Scotland and Wales
24 – 26 May	English Twenty Club Prize Meeting
14 June	Lawrence match versus Scotland (Blair Atholl)
17 July	Ashburton; Public School Veterans
	English County Rifle Championship for the King George V
	Challenge Cup, for time see NRA daily programme
18 July	Entries to the Club Championship and Varley close
19 July	Aggregates for Club Championship and Varley commence
20 July	Meeting of District Superintendents, TBA.
21 July	Council Meeting, TBA.
23 July	King's Prize, first stage
	Aggregates for Club Championship and Varley finish
	County Long matches
24 July	County Short matches
-	National Match
25 July	Kolapore; UK Armed Forces match
•	King's Prize, second stage
26 July	Mackinnon
	King's Prize, final

- 1. The Club shall be called the 'English Twenty Club', also known as 'English XX Club'.
- 2. The objects of the Club are to foster target shooting in the interests of National Defence, and in particular to organise the English team in any International match shot in the disciplines covered by the Club (see Bye-law 1).
- 3. Membership
  - (a) Membership is open only to those eligible to shoot for England under the rules for the time being in force for the National Challenge Trophy Match and who are subjects of The Sovereign.
  - (b) A candidate for membership must be proposed and seconded by members of the Club and approved as specified in Bye-law 2.
  - (c) Members shall be Life Members or Under 25 Members or Annual Members (see Bye-law 3).
  - (d) New Members or Associates (as defined in Rule 6) shall not be admitted to membership or be entitled to any of the privileges of membership specified in Rule 5 unless not less than three days have elapsed from the date of their being proposed and seconded for membership under paragraph (b) of this Rule or elected under Rule 6(a).
  - (e) Members, who subsequently become ineligible for membership under Rule 3(a) by adopting another nationality, may continue in membership and have the privileges given in Rule 5 (a), (b), (c) and (d).
- 4. Subscriptions
  - (a) Subscriptions shall be paid to the Club as specified in Bye-law 3. Subscription rates are fixed by Council, provided the subscription is not increased by more than the increase in the retail price index since the subscription was last set. If Council needs to impose a greater increase the new subscription must be agreed at a general meeting (see Rule 14).
  - (b) Annual Members must pay their subscriptions each year before they take part in any event, decision-making procedure or meeting for Club members. A member who is not active may pay the subscription at any time up to 31 August (the end of the financial year). A member who fails to pay the subscription shall be removed from the list of members. A lapsed member may apply to rejoin the Club by completing the current application forms.
- 5. Privileges of Membership

The privileges of membership are:

- (a) to attend, speak and vote at any general meeting of the Club
- (b) to have access to the yearbook
- (c) to wear the Club blazer badge and tie
- (d) to compete for the Jewels in the District or Division (see Rule 11) in which registered
- (e) to shoot in any event organised by the Club for its members
- (f) to receive the support of the Club in any efforts that may be made to encourage target shooting for English shooters

(g) to be considered for selection for the National, Mackinnon and Lawrence matches and for other England and English Twenty Club teams.

Annual Members shall not be entitled to any of the above privileges until they have paid their subscriptions for the current year.

6. Schools and Cadet Units

Schools and Cadet Units may affiliate to the English Twenty Club. The affiliation fee is fixed by Council and shall be paid as specified in Bye-law 3. The privileges of affiliation are described in Bye-law 6.

- 7. Associates
  - (a) The Council shall have the power to elect as an Associate any person whose services to the Club or to target shooting in England have been of exceptional value.
  - (b) Associates shall pay no subscription and shall have no vote at the Annual General Meeting. They shall have the privileges given in Rule 5 except (d), (e) and (g).
- 8. Council
  - (a) The affairs of the Club shall be managed by and its assets vested in a Council consisting of a President, Past Presidents and Executive Vice-Presidents (see Rule 10) subject to (f) below, members as provided for in (b), (c) and (d) below, an Honorary Secretary and an Honorary Treasurer, who may be the same person.
  - (b) Up to nine members shall be elected as stipulated in (e) and (g) below.
  - (c) One member may be nominated by the UK Armed Forces, one member may be nominated by the Council for Cadet Rifle Shooting and one member may be nominated by the British Young Shooters Association. Nominations for these posts must be with the Honorary Secretary by the end of September each year.
  - (d) The Captains of the England National and Mackinnon teams shall be exofficio members of the Council for a period of one year from the announcement of their appointments.

The Representative of the District Superintendents Group (see Rule 11) shall be invited annually to be a voting member of the Council. Superintendents of Divisions (see Rule 11) with enough members to qualify for a bronze jewel as defined in Bye-law 7 shall be invited annually to be a voting member of Council.

- (e) The President, Honorary Secretary, Honorary Treasurer and the nine members in (b) shall be elected for a period of three years. One third of the members in (b) above shall retire in rotation in each year, those willing being eligible for re-election at the AGM in accordance with (g) below. All persons covered by this rule must be paid up members of the Club.
- (f) If they intend to act in an executive capacity, the Past Presidents and Vice-Presidents shall declare this annually in writing to the Honorary Secretary within a period of 90 days after the Annual General Meeting. Executive Past Presidents or Executive Vice-Presidents shall be ex-officio members of Council. See also rule 10.

- (g) Any new candidate for election as President, Honorary Secretary or Honorary Treasurer, or for election to the Council may be proposed by the Council or must be nominated in writing by two members of the Club. All candidates for a particular post must be proposed and seconded 35 days before the AGM. Where there are two or more nominations for any of the positions of President, Honorary Secretary or Honorary Treasurer, or where in the case of the nine elected members in Rule 8(b) above there are more nominations than elected places to be filled on the Council, there shall be a ballot of members to determine the outcome. The Council shall determine the method of ballot and other aspects of the administration of the voting procedure not specified in Rule 8(h).
- (h) In the case of the President, Honorary Secretary and Honorary Treasurer, members of the Club shall be accorded one vote for each contested position, and the person polling the highest number of votes for each of the contested positions shall be elected. In the case of the elected members of Council, members of the Club shall be accorded such number of votes as there are available positions, not more than one of which may be given to any one candidate. A member may use none, or any number of their votes as they consider appropriate. The candidates polling the highest number of votes shall be elected. Only paid up members of the Club voting in accordance with Rule 8(g) shall be entitled to vote.

In the event of a tie for the post of President the Chairman of Council shall have a casting vote. In the event of a tie for any other post the President shall have a casting vote.

- 9. Council Powers
  - (a) The Council shall have power to:
    - (i) Appoint a chairman of Council from amongst its members.
    - (ii) Make, amend or cancel such Bye-laws or Regulations (subject to the Rules of the Club and provided that they are not contrary to or inconsistent with any of these Rules) as they may consider expedient for the proper working of the Club. Such Bye-laws, and Regulations shall be binding on all members until set aside by the votes of twothirds of the members present a General Meeting.
    - (iii) Appoint sub-committees for such purposes as they may consider desirable.
    - (iv) Fill any vacancy occurring by death, resignation or otherwise between the Annual General Meetings.
    - (v) Deal with any point not provided for in the Rules of the Club.
    - (vi) Appoint the Captains of the England National, Mackinnon and other teams.
    - (vii) Remove the name of any member from the list of members for any reason that they may consider sufficient. No member who shall be struck off under this Rule shall have any claim on the Club for any subscription or entrance fees paid.
  - (b) Eight members of the Council shall constitute a quorum.
  - (c) The day to day management of the Club shall be delegated to an Executive Committee consisting of the President, the Chairman of Council, the

Honorary Secretary and the Honorary Treasurer. They shall have the power to deal with such administrative matters as may be necessary for the smooth running of the Club within parameters set from time to time by Council, such as Police and Home Office matters, executing decisions taken by Council, maintaining relationships with other organisations, management reporting systems and so on (but this is not an exhaustive or exclusive list). The Executive Committee may co-opt other members of the Club as necessary to assist in fulfilling these tasks. The Executive Committee shall not have power to dispose of any assets of the Club or change the Rules of the Club.

10. Vice-Presidents

The Club shall be entitled to elect at each Annual General Meeting Vice-Presidents from amongst its members in accordance with the provisions of Rule 8(g) who shall retire annually but be eligible for re-election. Vice-Presidents shall not be members of the Council unless they make the declaration specified in Rule 8(f) in which case they will be Executive Vice-Presidents.

- 11. Districts and Divisions
  - (a) In order to facilitate the organisation of the Club, England shall be divided into Districts, each District being placed under the supervision of a District Superintendent. In addition there shall be separate Divisions covering the whole Country and devoted entirely to the encouragement of specific disciplines as specified in Bye-law 1.
  - (b) Each new District or Divisional Superintendent shall normally be elected at the first Council Meeting of each financial year and remain in position until he or she either resigns or a formal nomination is received by the Honorary Secretary. Should a vacancy arise or members of a District or Division wish to nominate a Superintendent then the procedures identified in Bye-Law 4 shall apply.
  - (c) A meeting of the District and Divisional Superintendents shall be held during the Annual Bisley Meeting of the National Rifle Association (NRA). Any District and Divisional Superintendent unable to attend may nominate a deputy.
  - (d) If a member wishes to transfer from one District or Division to another, such transfer may be accepted by a Superintendent provided that notice has been given to the Superintendents of both the original and new District or Division. In the case of an objection on the part of either Superintendent the case shall be referred to the Council. In one year a member may only shoot for one District in the KGV.
- 12. Accounts
  - (a) The Accounts of the Club shall be made up to 31 August in each year and shall be examined by an Independent Examiner elected at the previous Annual General Meeting.
  - (b) The accounts shall be included in the yearbook and laid before the next Annual General Meeting.
- 13. General Meetings
  - (a) There shall be an Annual General Meeting. Members shall be advised of the location, date and time of this meeting at least 28 days beforehand by

email to all members with registered email addresses and by a notice on the web site.

- (b) An Extraordinary General Meeting may be called by the Honorary Secretary if Council decides that one is required or on the request of 20 paid up members of the Club. Members shall be advised of the location, date and time of any such meeting at least 28 days beforehand by email to all members with registered email addresses and by a notice on the web site.
- (c) Ten members of the Club shall constitute a quorum.
- 14. In the event of the English Twenty Club for any reason ceasing to exist, the balance of its assets, after meeting all liabilities, shall be transferred to the National Rifle Association or any such other appropriate organisation as shall be decided by the then existing members of the Club.
- 15. Alteration of Rules
  - (a) These Rules shall not be altered except at a General Meeting, and then only by the votes of not less than two-thirds of the members present.
  - (b) Notice of a motion for an amendment of these Rules must be given to the Honorary Secretary in writing not less than 35 days prior to the General Meeting at which it will be considered.

### Bye-laws 1 - Shooting Disciplines

- 1. The Club supports the disciplines of Target Rifle (TR), 300m, F Class and Gallery Rifle (GR). Service rifle shooters may join the Club in the appropriate TR district but currently there are no specific Club events for the service rifle.
- 2. In accordance with any restrictions currently in force the Club supports target shooting with pistols via the EPA Division.

Approved by Council 31 March 2016

#### 2 - Approval of Membership

- 1. Applications for membership may be submitted either to the Membership Secretary direct, or through the District or Divisional Superintendents.
- 2. The Membership Secretary shall make any checks deemed appropriate prior to submission of the applications to the Hon Secretary for approval.

Approved by Council 30 October 2011

#### 3 - Subscriptions

- Annual Members £15 a year, due on 1 January, to be paid to the Club by means of a standing order, bank transfer or via the District or Divisional Superintendent. Standing order forms are available on the web site. Contact the treasurer for details of payment by bank transfer.
- 2. For a single subscription of three times the current annual subscription, a person under the age of 25 is eligible to become an Under 25 Member until the end of the year in which the 25th birthday occurs, subject to the provisions for admission set out in Rule 3.
- 3. The affiliation fee for Schools and Cadet Units is twice the annual subscription for individual members.

Approved by Council 22 July 2024

#### 4 - Election Procedure for District and Divisional Superintendents

- 1. A nomination may be made by any two members of the District or Division. Such nomination, duly signed, must be sent to the Honorary Secretary not later than 30 September. The current Superintendent may offer to continue without any nomination.
- 2. If there is more than one candidate there shall be a ballot of all members of the District or Division. The ballot may be postal or by electronic communication as considered appropriate by Council for the District or Division at the time. The procedure shall be determined by Council to achieve a result that can be published by 31 December.
- 3. If no new nomination is received before 30 September, the Council shall have power to re-appoint the Superintendent currently in office, or to appoint any other member of the District or Division to the office. If a Superintendent retires, and he nominates a successor, the Council may at their discretion accept this nomination without recourse to the members of the District or Division.

However, if no such nomination is made and the members of the District or Division do not themselves nominate a successor, the Council shall fill the vacancy.

Approved by Council 30 October 2011

#### 5 - Prize Winners

- 1. Members winning Club prizes are expected to receive them at the prize giving. Members shall be advised of the location, date and time of the prize giving at least seven days beforehand.
- 2. All Club trophies must be returned to the Honorary Secretary at the English Twenty Club Spring Prize Meeting for engraving, and at the latest by the NRA Intercounties weekend (mid-June) if already engraved. If a trophy which has been accepted and signed for is not returned in the same condition as it was received the holder will be liable for the cost of any repair or cleaning required and will not be eligible to take away any trophies in the future. The Varley Trophy **must not** be polished.

Approved by AGM 22.November 2020

#### 6 - School and Cadet Unit Affiliations

- 1. Each affiliated school or cadet unit receives a bronze jewel and access to the English Twenty Club Yearbook.
- Those attending Bisley Camp during the NRA meeting are urged to take the opportunity to meet club members from their home districts so that they may more easily continue shooting with local clubs when they leave their school or cadet unit.
- 3. However, after they leave, only those of English nationality are eligible to become members of the English Twenty Club.

Approved by Council 31 March 2016

#### 7 - District and Division Jewels

- In each district or division having eight members a bronze jewel is awarded; for each additional 12 members, a further jewel is awarded. If a district or division qualifies for more than one jewel, one is silver; if more than five, two are silver. For example, a District with a membership of 68 is entitled to two silver and four bronze jewels. In each district a further bronze jewel is awarded for young or novice shooters.
- 2. In each district entitled to at least two jewels, a further bronze jewel is awarded for young or novice shooters. This jewel is referred to as XB; it is exempt from the requirements of paragraphs 4 and 5. If this jewel is not presented in any year it must be returned to the Membership Secretary.
- 3. The number of jewels is determined by the membership in the preceding year (by the number of life members, plus the number of annual subscriptions received).
- 4. Only life members and members who have paid their subscriptions for the current year prior to their jewel shoot are eligible to take a jewel. They may only shoot for jewels in the district or division in which they are registered.

- 5. Those registered in a division in addition to a district may shoot for both sets of jewels, but may only win one jewel in any year. A member who, after the first of the two jewel shoots, qualifies for a jewel must elect whether to accept that jewel before the competition for the second.
- 6. Jewels should be shot for before 31 October each year, with conditions arranged locally. Wherever possible, the competition should be held on a range within the district.
- 7. Results must be returned to the Membership Secretary no later than 15 November.

Approved by Council 31 March 2016

#### 8 - Selection of England Team Captains

The following arrangements for the Selection of Team Captains have been agreed by the Council of the Club:

1. The Captaincy Committee consists of all current Executive Vice-Presidents and Past presidents, who elect to sit on the Committee, together with up to three experienced co-opted colleagues of the committee's choosing.

#### National Match Captaincy

2. The criterion for being nominated as National Match Captain is agreed as follows:

#### In recognition of outstanding service to English fullbore shooting.

As a guidance note, such service is likely to have been as a Club, County or Cadet Official, or as an English Twenty Club District Superintendent or Council Member. Alternatively as a result of distinguished record of representation in major England team matches (National, Mackinnon or overseas equivalents) or Commonwealth Games.

#### **Mackinnon Captaincy**

3. The criterion for being nominated as Mackinnon Match Captain is agreed as follows:

#### In recognition of success as captain or coach of, or as a shooter in, England teams.

As a guidance note, the person selected is also likely to be a successful team leader.

#### **UKAF Captaincy**

4. The guidelines for being nominated as UKAF Match Captain are agreed as follows: (i) in recognition of that person's service to the Club and/or (ii) in recognition of their previous representation in Club teams (whether shooting or coaching).

#### Procedure for Nomination and Selection of National, Mackinnon and UKAF Captains

5. The procedure for nomination and selection of National, Mackinnon and UKAF Captains is as follows:

- a) Any English Twenty Club member may propose an appropriate candidate to their District Superintendent, the Hon. Secretary or alternatively to any member of the Captaincy Committee, having wherever possible obtained prior agreement from such candidate.
- b) The District Superintendents may consider candidates at their annual meeting which takes place at the NRA Imperial Meeting and propose them to the Captaincy Committee for consideration the following year.
- c) Where practical and possible the Hon. Secretary will notify the Club membership of the possibility of making proposals for Captains, for instance in an early year newsletter.
- d) All nominations from Club members and District Superintendents and those received by the Hon Secretary should be received by the Captaincy Committee no later than one week before the Spring Meeting.
- e) After adding their own nominations if so desired, the Captaincy Committee draw up their recommended short lists of candidates and submit, wherever possible, 3 for each Captaincy to the Council at the meeting held during the NRA Imperial Meeting.
- f) Council votes to elect the Captains for the following year, which are announced prior to the end of the NRA Imperial Meeting.

#### Lawrence Match Captaincy

6. The Captain of the England Team in the Lawrence Match shall be the National Captain for the year in question, or their delegate.

#### **RAFTRC v Home Countries Match Captaincies**

7. The Captain of the Twenty Club Team in the RAFTRC v Home Countries Short Range Match shall be the National Captain for the year in question, or their delegate.

The Captain of the Twenty Club Team in the RAFTRC v Home Countries Short Range Match shall be the National Captain for the year in question, or their delegate.

#### European Long Range Team Championship

8. The Captain of the Englan Team in the European Long Range Team Championship, which is traditionally held in the autumn, shall be the Mackinnon Captain for the year in question, or their delegate.

#### **Other 'Home Country' Matches**

9. The Captaincy committee also makes recommendations to Council regarding the captaincies of other England or Twenty Club team matches, as well as for disciplines other than TR which are supported by the Club. For disciplines other than TR, members should follow the procedure above by referring candidates to the appropriate Divisional Superintendent.

# **Overseas Matches and Team tours (TR only)**

10. Note: This Bye-law does not apply to the Commonwealth Games or CSF (ED) competitions.

a) When an invitation to an Overseas Match to be held as part of a Team Tour is extended to England, the Club will circulate by email a calling notice with details of the tour to all members, seeking nominations for the captaincy to be submitted to the Hon Secretary. the position will be advertised on the Club website and social media platforms as appropriate.

b) After the closing date, nominations will be passed by the Hon Secretary to the Captaincy Committee for deliberation and submission to Council. Note that all candidates will be considered and their names put forward with none being filtered out, but with the Captaincy Committee's recommendation(s).

c) Council will then vote to appoint the Captain. (This may be undertaken electronically, by email, depending on appropriate time scales.

Approved by Council 22 July 2024

### **Other Information**

The English Twenty Club is affiliated to the National Rifle Association with reference number 307.

#### Protection of Children and Vulnerable Adults in Target Shooting

The English Twenty Club adopts the NRA Policy as outlined in its new Guide to Policy and Procedures on the Protection of Children and Vulnerable Adults in Target Shooting.

This guide and associated documents may be located on the NRA website: http://www.nra.org.uk/common/asp/ChildProt/ChildProt.asp?site=NRA.

### **Bisley Clubhouse**

The club no longer has its own clubhouse at Bisley.

# President's Report for the Year 2024

I wish to start my report by updating you on the health of two very long standing, and hardworking, members of our Club.

May I start with (chairman) Tom Rylands: Tom suffered a serious heart attack last May. He is, at this time of writing... still hospitalised and is making progress to better health, albeit very slowly.

Robin Pizer, Former president and long-term Secretary of the National Match Council: Robin had a serious stomach operation on Christmas Eve but is making good progress with great care and hopes to be back home later in the New Year.

I am sure you would all join me in wishing them both a speedy recovery to good health and we look forward to meeting them both on the ranges before too long.

-----

Now to England Shooting: 2024 was another good year for England, both Teams and Individuals and my hearty congratulations to the respective Captains and Team Members, with some excellent scores all round. The **America Match** held on Raton Ranges, NM. USA ... England, led by captain on the day, John Richie, put pressure on the Home Team and received Silver for their efforts a mere 2 points behind America - USA: 4,719 and England: 4,717. Gee... I'd call that close! Although a onetime frequent shooter in California, I have not competed in Raton but am fully aware of the challenging (!) wind on that range plus, even minor temperature changes on the day, can frequently irritate elevation settings!!

Well done all of you and I'm sure the Tour was much fun, both on and off the range, and a very memorable one too.

It was good to see several new (England) faces there together with some very high scores as well.

AND, back home...

- The National Match. Bisley.
- The Lawrence. Blair Athol.
- The Mackinnon.
- U25 Home Counties.

Armed UK Forces.

England XX v's Welsh XX.

- Capt. Reg Roberts.
- Capt. Martin Liversage.
- Capt. John Bellringer.
- Capt. Harriet Bramwell.

Nick Brasier

- Capt. Ian Ashworth.
- Capt. Dave Morris

The European Long Range Champs Capt.

Again, it was most pleasing to see many new young shooters taking part in all Teams, which is extremely good news for the future of our sport and England especially, of course...

Our Club Matches again saw many new faces taking part and I congratulate all winners and may I wish you all well in this, the 2025 season's competitions.

Fully detailed reports on all Matches can be found later in this Year Book.

Our Council.

With Tom's rather sudden, serious health issue, Council appointed Martin Liversage to take on the role of chairman and, Martin, I wish you well and thank you for responding with enthusiasm to this new post.

Our Hon Secretary, Adam Leech, continues to look after all important issues and records etc. and I thank you too Adam for the hard work and necessary professional effort you continually give to the Club.

Hon Treasurer, Jeremy Tuck. Thank you for keeping such good control of our finances Jeremy and dare I say, long may it (and you) continue.

Membership secretary. Graham Nelson. Thank you, Graham, for getting, and keeping, our records in such good condition and order.

Competition Secretary. Laura Haley. Thank you so much Laura, for your necessary hard work from arranging, organising and running these most important club competitions.

Mike Fugeman our Website Administrator ... Good-on-yer Mike and my sincere thanks for your enthusiastic efforts here...

The English Lions Development Team ... Ian Ashworth, Archie Witcher "& Co…" Well... the hard work given by you and your Team is certainly paying off and is shown clearly on so many record sheets.

Congratulations and my sincere thanks for your enthusiasm and keen efforts on all fronts.

Stephen Penrose, our keen and hardworking editor of our Year Book/s. I know you chase me Stephen and (I hope) many other members, for all necessary records and base information for the Book. Sincere thanks from myself and, I'm sure, many other members too, Stephen.

NB: Stephen is considering retirement soon and will be seeking a replacement Editor -- as and when. Any volunteers??

ALL other members of Council. Thank you indeed for all that you do (sometimes quietly...) to help run the Club.

In closing, may I wish you all a Happy and *Healthy* New Year and here's to a great season on the ranges too.

I'll quietly add Robin Pizer and Tom Rylands to this paragraph.

Keep well ... Yours sincerely.

Mick Barr.

# Accounts for the Year to 31 August 2024

2023 £		EXPENDITURE		2024 £
250		Yearbook		137
181		District Jewels Cost of Jewels awarded		582
6,657	5,012 1,645	Matches International entry fees and expenses Other competitions	3,811 1,124	4,934
442		Affiliation fees		1,163
0		Equipment repairs and replacements		0
144		General expenses and depreciation		267
0		Insurances		0
963		Touring Team Expenses		2,542
2,181		England Lions Expenses		1,772

10,819	TOTAL EXPENDITURE	11,418

2023		Accounts for the Year to 31 August 20. INCOME	24	2024
£				£
_	6,770 453	Subscriptions Annual memberships Transfers from Life Fund	6,695 428	
7,223		Total subscriptions and affiliations		7,123
610		Donations and bequests		605
3,507	24,429 -20,921	Spring Meeting Entry fees Less expenses and prizes	23,966 18,745	5,221
424	5,476 -5,052	County Championship Income (entry fees and Final fees) Less expenses and prizes	2,640 -4,112	-1,472
1,601	2,025 -424	Club Championship and Varley Entry fees Less expenses and prizes	2,200 414	1,786
0		Sundry Income		294
340		Surplus /(deficit) on sale of merchandise brass etc		55
65		Interest on deposits and investments		212
13,770		TOTAL INCOME	-	13,824
2,952		NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) ON INCOME	-	2,406

	ALLL	Junis Ior line Tear to ST August 2024	•	
2023 £		LIABILITIES		2024 £
	555 0	Life Membership Fund Balance as at 31 August 2023 Add new Memberships in year Add new Junior Life memberships	507 150	
_	405 -453	in year Less transferred to income	495 -428	
507		Balance at 31 August 2024		724
_	28,929 5,156	Surplus Account Balance as at 31 August 2023 Add prior year unallocated surplus/(deficit)	34,085 2,952	
34,085		Balance as at 31 August 2024		37,037
1,031		Provisions		839
35,622		TOTAL LIABILITIES	-	38,599
2,952		Capital/Equity Surplus/(deficit) of income in year		2,406
38,574		TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY	-	41,005
2023 £		ASSETS	-	2024 £
20,155	20,155	Investments Bank deposits, Santander	20,367	20,367
8,163	6,038 2,125	Stocks County Jewels and spoons Goods for sale	5,455 2,106	7,562
470		Debtors		23
9,786		Cash At bank and in hand		13,054
38,574		TOTAL ASSETS	-	41,005

# Treasurer's Report

Accounts – Year to 31 August 2024

The draft accounts were approved by Council on 31<sup>st</sup> October for submission to the AGM and will be formally issued once the Independent Review has been undertaken.

Referring to the draft accounts I set out highlights below:

The club achieved an income surplus of £2,952 during the period compared to  $\pm$ 5,156 last year.

Once provisions, stock and other items are taken into account the total assets of the Club reduced from £40,617 to £38,574 during the year as shown on the Balance Sheet – a reduction of £2,043. This was due to the decision to provide a greater degree of subsidy to certain matches than in previous years.

Income from annual subscriptions was slightly down at £7,223.

Income from donations reduced from £855 to £610. Members will recall that donations arise mainly from standing orders for £10 or £5 that have not been increased to the current annual subscription level.

The Spring Meeting generated a surplus of £3,507, down from £5,131 last year.

CCV entry revenue was slightly up compared to last year which resulted in a surplus of £1,601

The KGV County Championship generated a surplus of £424, after releasing a provision of £1,278 for the cost of target hire for 2022. In 2023 we were charged the cost of targets and the match itself resulted in a loss of c£1,300.

A full stock take of Club items was undertaken at the end of August. The closing stock figure is much increased having bought several years' worth of County Jewels and some other items of merchandise.

As always, the future financial health of the club will rely on maintaining membership numbers and surpluses being generated from the Spring Meeting, Club Championship and Varley.

The Club remains in a stable financial state and accounts for the financial year ending 31st August 2024 have been compiled. Paul Charlton has agreed to act as our independent reviewer and has recently looked at the 2023 accounts presented in draft at the AGM last year and the 2024

#### Treasurer's Report

accounts and has approved them both. I wish to record my thanks to Paul for undertaking this task.

At the start of the financial year, the Club had £9,786 in the current account and ended the year with £13,054 whilst the savings account started with £20,155 and ended with £20,367. Over the course of the year the Club value increased by about £2.4k.

As can be seen from the attached accounts, membership and other elements have progressed much as last year. The Spring Meeting, RAF Matches, CCV, KGV and Imperial Team entries were all in line with the

plan for the year. Support to the USA Team and Lions was also provided. The provision for £839 is for a target booking on 23rd August which has subsequently been paid on the 16th September.

As always, the future financial health of the club relies on continuing surpluses being generated from the Spring Meeting and the Club Championship / Varley.

The support to EXX Teams for 2025 will be as follows:

Imperial Teams - entries paid by Club

KGV Final – targets and markers paid by Club, ammo charged to teams UKAF - entries paid by Club, ammo paid by team

RAF Matches – 50% of Tgts/Mkrs paid by Club, 50% of Tgts/Mkrs & ammo paid by teams

Lawrence and European LR team entries paid by the Club, ammo paid by the teams.

Touring team entries paid by the Club and a grant to the team decided by the Exec.

The creation of an inventory of the Club trophies is in progress and will then lead to a valuation of the trophies. Once this has been completed insurance costs can be identified for consideration.

J R Tuck Honorary Treasurer

# Secretary's Report for the Year 2024

I am pleased to report that the club continues to grow and perform across all supported disciplines. TR membership and results continue to be strong across what is our largest discipline, Gallery Rifle continues to grow in popularity and deliver strong results and discussions with the F Class section commencing towards the end of 2024 looking to grow the section and field English competitive F Class teams in international events over 2025 and 2026. All of this can only be a good thing for the growth of shooting sports. The club also continues to engage in the future of the sport, not just with its members supporting CCRS activities and the English Lions programme but with 2024 seeing the first appointment of Alex Sadler as representative to Council from the British Young Shooters Association, a growing organisation closely aligned to the Club's disciplines. We hope that this helps ensure growth not just in immediate years, but for many more to come.

At this point I must also offer both the club's and my own personal thanks to Tom Rylands, whose departure as Chairman due to illness left a very big gap to fill. Tom has been a ceaseless supporter, in both principle and action, of English shooting and shooting as a whole, including significant contributions to the sport's younger participants and this support will be sorely missed. At the same time, I would also like to thank Martin Liversage for accepting the proposal to stand as Chairman and to Council for his election as such. Martin has over a decade's experience as Hon Secretary and Competitions Secretary and I have no doubt will be an excellent fit for the role.

#### **Club Competitions**

The various club competitions continue under the effective administration of our Competitions Secretary, Laura Haley. First in the year was the Spring Meeting, held on its traditional late May Bank Holiday weekend. Congratulations to David Luckman on his victory, as well as Trevor Bryan for the Booth Cup and John Warburton for the Molyneux Bowl.

The Club Championship and Varley took place concurrent with the Grand Aggregate as always and congratulations to Matthew Ensor and Derek Lowe on their respective victories in those. Congratulations also to Matthew Keel on winning both the Top O Class and Top Under 25 prizes, and to Rory Mace as top Under 19.

The club again performed strongly in our regular team matches, securing victory in the Lawrence, National, Mackinnon and Under-25 Home Countries matches and a close second (by a single point) in the UK Armed Forces match vs the Home Countries.

#### KGV

The competition continued in its usual format for 2024, with Surrey taking the win at the final on First Thursday of the Imperial Meeting. 2025 heats are already underway and I would remind prospective shooters looking for a team that county eligibility includes not just their residence or birth, but also that of both parents and grandparents. Again a reminder of last year's rule change, as advised to District Superintendents, requiring the notification of squads (from which teams will be selected) to the Membership Secretary at least 2 weeks before your heat. This allows for confirmation of current membership (or the steps needed to ensure it) in sufficient time as to comply with club rules, so avoiding some of the eligibility issues encountered recently.

#### Club Championship & Varley

As always these run concurrent with the Grand Aggregate, so entries close the preceding day, being Friday 18<sup>th</sup> July. If you have not paid your entry for this as part of your membership renewal then please contact the Competitions Secretary at competitions@englishtwenty.org.uk

#### **English Lions**

The Lions programme continues with the 2024-25 squad underway and once again under the management of Ian Ashworth. Many thanks to him and to his faculty of coaches, mentors and guesting volunteers in continuing to make the programme a success. A comprehensive report can be found elsewhere in this yearbook, but as always I take this opportunity to encourage anyone looking to develop their shooting to seriously consider applying when the next round of applications are invited. The programme continues to deliver members of home and touring teams and one Queen's Prize winner!

#### Yearbook

The printed yearbook is available on request for a small fee to cover printing costs, so please contact your DS if you would like one. Each DS will be given a yearbook at no charge. All of the information in the yearbook is also available on the website.

#### **England Rolls**

The club's rolls are updated annually and are posted on the website.

https://englishtwenty.org.uk/about/historical-match-records/

To help us maintain accurate records, please check that your details are accurate and let us know of any omissions.

#### Tours

After 2023 and 2024 tours (to be reported on elsewhere in this yearbook), the club is due to tour again for the third time in four years. This time will be to Trinidad in March/April 2026; congratulations to Philip Chapman-Sheath on his appointment as Captain and the best of luck to all in the training squad for selection for the touring team.

#### Payments to the Club

As mentioned in various newsletters, the club's sort code has now permanently changed and the old sort code permanently retired, so please make sure that you use the up-to-date account details when making any payments. We have seen some attempts to the old code fail, so most importantly do make sure that your membership doesn't lapse, or Club Championship payment doesn't fail, as a result. The current details are:

English Twenty Club

Santander

09-01-55

22428606

Please also use the following simple codes in the notes field when making payments online, along with any other specific/personal reference advised to you:

CCV - Championship and Varley

SUB – Subscription

KGV – KGV heats/finals payments

MER – merchandise

SM – Spring Meeting

YBR - Yearbook

For membership and Club Championship payments, please add your unique membership number. If you are unsure of the latter, please contact the Membership Secretary, Graham Nelson who can advise.

#### **General Admin**

If you haven't already, please let me have a current email address for you. This is our primary means of communication with you, the membership, so you risk missing out if we do not have a current email address for you.

Make sure your subs are up to date; if you're not paying £15 (£25 including the club championship) by standing order then please amend it for next year. Alternatively you can make a one-off payment using the account number and code mentioned above.

If you intend to enter the Championship then please include the £10 payment with your subs, it reduces the admin for us during the Imperial and helps you avoid missing the Friday noon cut off.

Please note that the English Twenty Club is not a primary club and does not issue Certificates of Competence. These MUST be obtained from your primary club or directly from the NRA.

Finally, good luck to all of the 2025 captains and teams, and I hope to see many of you on the range this year.

Adam Leech Hon Secretary secretary@englishtwenty.org.uk

# English Twenty Lions Report for the Year 2024 English Twenty Lions Report for the Year 2024

The 2025 Lions programme is underway and continues to identify and develop talented shooters and coaches from across the country. The first weekend in late 2024 was once again a success and has fostered winter training by its cohort ahead of the first 2025 weekend in the spring. A number of Lions have already expressed their interest in the RAF matches and touring team, which continues to show the value of the programme to English representative shooting.

As always, the club offers its thanks to the Lions management team (led by Ian Ashworth) and the numerous volunteers for their dedication to the delivery of this programme. We hope to see as many of the squad as possible achieving their performance goals and shooting in the National team in July.

A request for applications for the 2026 scheme will be announced later this year. As always, if either you or anyone you know is shooting (or coaching) well, is uncapped (or single-capped) in the National, and is keen to progress their England level shooting then please do apply when the opportunity arises. County shooting is a strong indicator for Lions selection, so make sure you get any such candidates signed up to your county, and in turn details passed to your county DS so they can sign up as club members, too.

#### Minutes of the Annual General Meeting held by Zoom on Sunday 15th December 2024 at 19:00

#### Members Present

Mick Barr (MEB, President), Martin Liversage (ML, Chairman), Adam Leech (AJL, Hon Secretary), Jeremy Tuck (JRT, Hon Treasurer), Ian Ashworth, Charles Brooks, Alastair Brown (AIB), PAE Charlton (PAEC), David Colegate, Stuart Comins (SC), Ben Craig (BNC), Neil Francis, Mike Fugeman (MRF), Mike Gregory, Mike Jenvey (MDJ), Stephen Penrose (SNSP), Robin Pizer, Keith Pugh, Alex Sadler (AS), Darren Stuart, Jon Underwood, John Webster.

The meeting was opened by the Chairman at 1903.

#### 1) Minute silence

The meeting held a minute's silence in memory of members who had passed away in the last twelve months.

#### 2) Apologies for absence

Apologies had been received from Glyn Barnett, Paul Holdstock,

Peter Merry, Chris Weeden, John Saunders, Tony de Launay.

#### 3) Minutes of the AGM held on Sunday 26<sup>th</sup> November 2023

The minutes of the 2023 AGM had been circulated prior to the meeting, and without further comment or alteration were accepted. These were proposed by JRT, seconded by SC, and carried nem con.

#### 4) Chairman's report

A Chairman's report from ML had been circulated in advance. There were no comments or questions.

#### 5) Treasurer's report & accounts

i) The treasurer's reports, draft accounts for 2024 and finalized accounts for 2023 had been circulated in advance. There were no comments or questions.

ii) Receipt of the report and accounts was proposed by MJ, seconded by SNSP, and carried nem con.

iii) JRT recorded his thanks to PAEC as the independent reviewer of the accounts. PAEC confirmed that he had examined the accounts and that they appeared to be an accurate representation of the records available to him.

#### 6) Election of Vice Presidents

Existing Vice-Presidents of CM Brooks, SJ Comins, AJCB de Launay, P Merry, KO Pugh, RP Rosling and AJD Saunders were presented for reelection. This was proposed by BC, seconded by MRF, and carried nem con.

#### 7) Election of Council members

i) Council members retiring by rotation were MR Fugeman, TG Rylands and JG Trembath.

ii) ML explained that following consultation with TGR's family, he would not be re-standing for Council at this time.

iii) AI Ashworth, MR Fugeman and JG Trembath were presented for election. This was proposed by JRT, seconded by SNSP, and carried nem con.

#### 8) Election of President

MEB retired by rotation and AJL had received no new nominations. MEB was presented for re-election. This was proposed by PAEC, seconded by MRF, and carried nem con.

#### 9) Announcement of captains for the forthcoming year

The following had been appointed by the Council as match captains for the forthcoming year:

National match – M Liversage Mackinnon match – NRJ Brasier UK Armed Forces match – MG Whicher U25 Home Countries Invitational – HJ Waldern

#### 10) Announcement of prize winners

The prize winners of the Spring Meeting and Imperial Meeting, were:

Spring MeetingThe Lion TrophyDC LuckmanTed Molyneux TrophyJD WarburtonBooth Cup (Class O)TJ Bryan

Club ChampionshipSutton CupMJ EnsorHodgson Cup (Class O)M KeelPresident's Cup (U25)M KeelCarol Painting Mem'l Trophy (U19)R Mace

The VarleyThe Varley TrophyD LoweJohnson Cup (Class O)SJ Whitby

The meeting closed at 1915.

**Team merchandise eligibility** The matrix below shows the eligibility criteria for wearing club colours.

	Match Shot							
		European						
			Touring	Long	Lawrence	XX		
Memorabilia	National	Mackinnon	Teams	Range	Match	Matches		
Three Lions			YES					
Blazer Badge	YES	YES	(Tour badge)	NO	NO	NO		
shoulder								
flashes	YES	YES	YES	YES*	YES*	NO		
tie/cravat	YES	YES	YES	NO	NO	NO		
Team polo								
shirts	YES	YES	YES	YES*	YES*	NO		
Team jumpers	YES	YES	YES	NO	NO	NO		
Team caps	YES	YES	YES	YES*	YES*	NO		

\*change in eligibility from 2017 onwards.
## Merchandise

We have a splendid range of caps, ties, badges, polo shirts and other items, which can be purchased by members.





This blazer badge is available to all members.

The rose and crown logo appears also on the navy blue polo shirt and sweatshirt. Both garments are cotton; they are available in sizes M, L, XL and XXL.

This team blazer badge may be worn by Captains, adjutants, shooters and coaches of past and present England teams for the National, Mackinnon, Commonwealth Games and official England tours.

The three lions logo appears also on the navy blue V neck pullover (50% lambs wool, 50% acrylic); this is available in sizes S, M, L, XL and XXL.



The cap is available to England team members in two versions: red with a gold logo and blue with a white logo.

Members of the England teams may wear England shoulder flashes.

The club tie has a rose logo and silver XX symbol. The team tie has a rose logo and gold XX symbol. The cravat has the same logo as the tie.

We also sell blazer buttons, brooches, lapel buttons and club spoons.

You can download a price list from the web site, which explains how to order by email. There is also a price list and ordering instructions at the back of this yearbook. For garments, please state the size you require. We plan to make ordering available via the web site, but this is not yet possible.

A.Leech Honorary Secretary

# TR Events

## **English Twenty Club Prize Meeting**

This is open to non-members who must become temporary members for the meeting. The Johnson Lion trophy is awarded to the winner. The meeting will be held at Bisley during the Spring bank holiday weekend.

For further information, see the programme and entry form, which are available through https://shootr.app as well as via the Club web site.

#### Past Winners 2000 Coleman D.G.M. 2013 Shaw I.T.G. 2001 Palmer G.D. 2014 Kent P.G. 2002 Ball N.J. 2015 Roberts R.M. 2003 Belither S. 2016 Ball N.J. Luckman D.C. 2004 2017 Luckman D.C. Ball N.J. 2018 2005 Ramsev K.W.D. Luckman D.C. 2019 Ball N.J. 2006 2007 Luckman D.C. 2020 Luckman D.C. Kent P G 2008 2021 Luckman D C 2022 2009 Raincock T.J.D. Raincock T.J.D. 2010 Bellringer J.E.M. Logan B. 2023 2011 Anderson J A 2024 Luckman D C 2012 Sykes P.D.

## **Results for 2024**

The Association (King's 1)		
1. Luckman D.C.	105.18	£10
2. Bromley P.B.	104.14	£5
3. Button M.C.J.	104.14	
The Second Stage (King's 2)		
1. Watson J.A.	150.24	£10
2. Tuck J.R.	149.26	£5
3. Walker A.N.R.	149.24	
The Cortis (15 at 600)		
1. Trembath J.G.	75.08	£10
2. Deane J.R.	74.13	£5
3. Sanderson G.	74.11	

, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		8
<b>The Long</b> (15 at 900)		
1. Luckman D.C.	75.13	£10
2. Trembath J.G.	75.08	£5
3. Bromley P.B.	75.08	
The Final (15 at 1000)		
1. Warburton J.	75.07	£10
2. Button M.C.J.	74.08	£5
3. Luckman D.C.	73.09	
Sunday Aggregate		
1. Luckman D.	223.31	£10
2. Tuck J.	222.32	£5
3. Hatcher R.	222.31	
Short Range Aggregate		
1. Luckman D.	328.49	£10
2. Bromley P.	326.39	£5
3 Ringer A.	326.39	
Inner Aggregate		
1. Luckman D.	298.44	£10
2. Bromley P.	297.33	£5
3. Ringer A.	296.39	20
Monday Aggregate		
1. Warburton J.	149.16	£10
2. Luckman D.	148.22	£5
3. Button M.	148.17	20
Cadet Grand Aggregate		
1. Bohn G.	457.44	Donegal badge and £10
	107.11	Bonogai baago ana 210
Molyneux Silver Bowl Aggregate 1. Warburton J.	160.13	
1. Warburton 5.	100.15	
Grand Aggregate		
1. Luckman D.	476.71	
		£20
2. Bromley P.	472.51	£12
3. Button M.	471.57	£10

## The Club Championship Rules

Gold, silver and bronze crosses, and cash prizes are given for the highest scores in the short range shoots of the NRA Grand Aggregate.

Members are divided into four Classes, X, A, O and T.

Class X, A, O and T will be as classified by the NRA at the start of the competition. Entrance fee: £10 payable before the day on which the Grand Aggregate of the NRA Meeting starts. This includes the entry fee for the Varley.

Entries must be made by standing order, with the Spring Meeting entry or by online banking using the code CCV and your unique membership number.

## Prizes – Open to Class X, A, O or T

- 1. T. Sutton Challenge Cup and gold cross
- Club Championship silver cross 2.
- 3. Club Championship bronze cross
- 4.-10. Club Championship small bronze cross

The Hodgson Challenge Cup is awarded to the highest score in Class O or T (other than the winner of the T. Sutton Challenge Cup).

The Presidents Cup is awarded to the highest competitor under 25 years old at the start of the Imperial Meeting, regardless of class.

No member may take any jewels or prizes in any Club competition unless he is qualified to shoot in the English Team for the National and Mackinnon Matches of the current year.

Ties for the challenge trophies, crosses and other prizes will be decided by current NRA regulations for counting out.

		Past Winners	
2000	Patel P.M.	2008	Ball N.J.
2001	Patel P.M.	2009	Underwood J.C.
2002	Brasier N.R.J.	2010	Underwood J.C.
2003	Patel P.M.	2011	Barnett G.C.D.
2004	Luckman A.J.	2012	Thomas S.A.
2005	Messer J.H.	2013	Pollock H.H.G.
2006	Patel P.M.	2014	Patel P.M.
2007	Patel P.M.	2015	Ball N.J.

## \_ ....

## English Twenty Club Prize Meeting

	0	,		5
2016	Drysdale T.M.	2	021	Patel P.M.
2017	Patel.P.M.		022	Patel P.M.
2018	Sykes P.D.		023	Broad W.J.D.
2019	Sykes P.D.		020	Ensor M.J.
	Raincock T.J.D.	2	024	
2020	Raincock T.J.D.	Result for 2	001	
		Result for 2	024	
Class -				
	isor M.J.	577.81		T. Sutton Challenge Cup, Gold cross and £15
	llar M.R.M.	577.74		Silver cross and £12
	derwood J.C.	576.81		Bronze cross and £10
	tchell C.J.	575.76		small bronze cross
	aincock T.J.D. ckman D.C.	575.74 574.79		small bronze cross
	ewart R.	574.79		small bronze cross small bronze cross
	el M.J.	574.65		small bronze cross
	ales C.D.	573.76		small bronze cross
	amsey K.W.D.	573.65		small bronze cross
Class A	-			
	evenson T.M.	572.72		£15
	ouler S.D.	572.67		£12
	atson J.A.	572.64		£10
Class O				
	, el M.J.	574.65		Hodgson Challenge Cup,
1. 1.		07 1.00	sr	nall bronze cross and £15
2. Ha	atfield P.A.	572.58		£12
3C	raig B.N.	566.67		£10
Class T				
	ourne T.J.	560.56	sr	mall bronze cross and £15
	iseman C.L.	551.45		£12
3. O'	Grady L.M.	539.49		£10
Prizes f	or young membe	rs		
	er 25 irrespective			
1. K	Keel M.J.	574.65		Presidents Cup and
			sn	nall bronze cross and £15
	lince J.M.	572.83		£12
	Burch J.R.L.	568.74		£10
	er 19 irrespective /ace R.J.	of class 562.64	Car	ol Painting Mem'l Trophy,
I. N	Iace R.J.	302.04		nall bronze cross and £15
			311	

## The Varley Rules

Gold, silver and bronze lion badges are awarded for the highest aggregate of scores made at long range in the Duke of Cambridge, Conan Doyle, Lovell and Corporation

Classes X, A, O and T as in the Club Championship.

## Prizes - Open to Class X, A, O or T

- 1. The Varley Challenge Cup and gold lion badge
- 2. Silver lion badge
- 3. Bronze lion badge

The Johnson Challenge Cup is awarded to the highest scorer in Class O or T (other than the winner of the Varley Challenge Cup).

In each class, there will be cash prizes of  $\pounds$ 15,  $\pounds$ 12 and  $\pounds$ 10. Ties for the challenge trophies, lion badges and other prizes will be decided by NRA current regulations for counting out.

## **Past Winners**

2000	Langley J.D.S.	2013	Messer J.H.
2001	Underwood J.C.	2014	Kent P.G.
2002	Bellringer J.E.M.	2015	Richards W,C.P.
2003	Luckman D.C.	2016	Messer J.H.
2004	Richards D.F.P.	2017	Milton C.
2005	Luckman D.C.	2018	Millar M.R.M.
2006	Morton C.J.	2019	Purdy M.J.
2007	Ball N.J.	2020	Patel P.M.
2008	Kent P.G.	2021	Drysdale T.M.
2009	Haley C.D.	2022	Drysdale T.M.
2010	Luckman D.C.	2023	Ringer T.A.
2011	Barnett G.C.D.	2024	Lowe D.
2012	Luckman D.C.		

## Result for 2024

### **Class - Open**

1.	Lowe D.	198.28	Varley Challenge Cup,
			Gold lion badge and £15
2.	Warren R.R.	197.19	Silver lion badge and £12
3.	Warburton J.D.	196.25	Bronze lion badge and £10

The	Varley
1110	vancy

Class	s A		
1.	Lowe D.	198.28	£15
2.	Haley C.D.	194.21	£12
3.	Riley R.	194.21	£10
Clas	s 0		
1.	Whitby S.J.	195.24	Johnson Challenge Cup and £15
2.	Booth T.M.	191.22	£12
3.	Keel M.J.	190.21	£10
Clas	s T		
1.	Wiseman C.L.	189.13	small bronze cross and £15
2.	Bourne T.J.	186.14	£12
3.	O'Grady L.M.	176.16	£10
Prize	es for young members		
	under 25 irrespective of	class	
1.	Booth T.M.	191.22	small bronze cross and £15
2.	Cubitt T.	191.22	£12
3.	Keel M.J.	190.21	£10
Тор	under 19 irrespective of	class	
1. '	Mace R.J.	189.15	small bronze cross and £15

## English County Rifle Championship

### for the King George V Challenge Cup

under the auspices of the English Twenty Club

## **General Rules**

a) There shall be an Annual Competition for a team Rifle Championship amongst the Districts of England defined by the Club. Each team shall be composed of shooters who are current members of the English Twenty Club, or pupils at Schools or Cadet Units affiliated to the Club and who are eligible to shoot for England in the National Match.

The particular District for which a person is qualified to shoot is decided by one of the following:

- (a) Birth<sup>2</sup>, county of birth of parents or grandparents.
- (b) Residential Parliamentary Vote. Should a member have no such vote he is deemed to have one in the same place as his next of kin.
- (c) After holding a Residential Parliamentary Vote in the District for ten consecutive years a person may opt for that District even though he ceases to be resident in the District.
- (d) A peer may shoot for the District in which he resides.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Where the District in which is situate the place of birth of a member is subsequently changed, such member may elect to shoot for either the original or the new District, but having once shot for the District of his election he shall at all times hereinafter be precluded from shooting for the other District.

### English County Rifle Championships

(e) A person in full-time education may represent the county in which the educational establishment is located.

A member must be registered with the District for which he elects to shoot.

- $Captains, Adjutants \ and \ Coaches \ must \ be \ fully \ qualified \ to \ shoot \ in \ their \ Teams.$
- b) The championship shall be decided by tournament with Districts grouped into regions. The Districts winning their regional heats shall compete in the Final. If a heat winner is unable to field a team for the Final, the District that came second in the heat shall be given the opportunity to shoot in the Final. The DS of the winning District is responsible for informing the second District and the Executive Committee. The District winning the Final is the Champion for the year.

#### Final

- c) The King George V Challenge Cup shall be held for the year by the Champion District. The Cup is to be returned to the Honorary Secretary or a member of the Executive Committee by the end of the English Twenty Club Spring Meeting of the year following that in which it was won.
- d) Up to 12 "gold" badges will be given to the winning team, up to 12 "silver" badges to the second team, and up to 12 "bronze" badges to the third team in the Final.
- e) The Match conditions for the Final shall be:
  - Teams shall be a maximum of twelve a side, consisting of eight firers all to count, two coaches, one Captain and one Adjutant.
  - There shall be two targets per team.
  - Two convertible sighting shots only per firer, per range, are allowed. Practice shots are not allowed.
  - The course of fire shall be ten shots to count per firer at 300, 500 and 600 yards.
  - The time limit is one hour at each range.
  - Team members must use 7.62mm (.308") ammunition.
  - Any rifle included in the NRA Target Rifle classification for the current year may be used.
  - In the absence of any local rule, NRA rules shall apply.
- f) The Final shall normally take place at Bisley Camp on First Thursday of the Imperial Meeting. If circumstances prevent this, the Executive Committee shall make alternative arrangements. Any ammunition may be used provided all participating District Superintendents agree; otherwise ammunition will be issued. The charge to each team entering the Final will be for target hire, markers, Range Officers and, if issued, for ammunition, all at cost.
- g) Any District that has been provided with a range and an agreed date but fails to compete shall be held to be beaten but must pay for facilities provided in good faith.

### Heats

h) The Match conditions for the heats shall be as for the Final where possible. In addition:

#### English County Rifle Championships

- Two or more Districts may apply to shoot as one team in special circumstances. All Districts in the region (see below) must agree the request, which must be submitted to the Executive Committee for ratification at least two weeks before the heat is due to take place.
- In addition to the cost of targets, etc., the entrance fee for the competition
  must be paid before shooting to the District Superintendent organising the
  heat; any team failing to do this shall be disqualified. The entry fee for the
  current year will be published on the web site.
- Dispensation may be granted by the Executive Committee of the English Twenty Club in relation to the number of firers, the number of shots and distances. The minimum number of firers for a heat shall be six. Where teams have six shooters or more the minimum course of fire shall be two convertible sighters and seven shots to count per firer at 300, 500 and 600 yards. If some teams in a region can field a full team of eight but others can only raise n (where n is between six and seven), the teams with eight select the top n scores.
- The time limit is decided by the Captains.
- The heats must take place by the end of June in each year. Each region shall be organised by one of the District Superintendents in the region, following in alphabetical order of District name. Details shall be agreed with the other District Superintendents concerned, and failing agreement as determined by the Executive Committee. The organising District Superintendent shall provide targets and range officers. Ammunition must comply with NRA rules, and will be provided by participating teams. If requested by a participating team, the organising District Superintendent must provide ammunition for that team.
- The regions are:

North:	Cheshire, Lancashire, Northumberland and Durham,
	Yorkshire
Midlands:	Derbyshire, Lincolnshire, Northamptonshire,
	Leicestershire and Rutland, Nottinghamshire,
	Warwickshire, Staffordshire and Shropshire,
	Worcestershire and Herefordshire
West:	Cornwall, Devon, Dorset, Gloucestershire, Somerset
East:	Bedfordshire, Cambridgeshire, Essex, Hertfordshire,
	Norfolk, Suffolk
South:	Berkshire, Buckinghamshire, Hampshire, London,
	Oxfordshire, Wiltshire
Home Counties:	Kent, Middlesex, Surrey, Sussex

- The completed scores shall be certified by the Captains and sent the day after the match to the Honorary Competitions Secretary of the English Twenty Club on team registers supplied by the Honorary Competitions Secretary.
- i) The winning team in each heat will receive up to 12 badges.

**Note:** the abbreviation KGV is used for the name of this competition in subsequent sections.

## **KGV Heats Organisation**

If you are responsible for organising your heat please liaise with the Competitions Secretary, Laura Haley, and return scores promptly to competitions@englishtwenty.org.uk.

## **Results Summary**

0000	0	4400 400		4474 400		4474 400
2000	Surrey	1193.160	Hertfordshire	1174.136	Hampshire	1171.132
2001	Surrey	1171.122		1157.125	Hertfordshire	1154.115
2002	Surrey	1176.149	Somerset		Berkshire	1165.131
2003	Sussex	1166.131	London	1164.119	Essex	1158.116
2004	London	1159.123	Surrey	1156.112	Somerset	1153.110
2005	Surrey	1172.139	Somerset	1157.123	London	1155.104
2006	Surrey	1191.161	Somerset	1181.137	Nottinghamshire	1175.127
2007	Surrey	1191.168	Norfolk	1188.147	Somerset	1180.143
2008	Surrey	1183.154	Somerset	1182.138	London	1167.127
2009	Surrey	1184.157	Norfolk	1176.135	Hampshire	1168.133
2010	Norfolk	1157.109	Sussex	1156.103	Hampshire	1142.112
2011	Surrey	1174.147	Lancashire	1171.119	Hampshire	1166.136
2012	Surrey	1189.162	Lancashire	1178.143	London	1172.117
2013	Surrey	1186.158	Northants, Leics	1179.147	London	1175.147
	,		and Rutland			
2014	Surrey	1177.150	Hampshire	1173.139	Northants, Leics	1165.127
	•		·		and Rutland	
2015	Surrey	1182.161	Hertfordshire	1180.144	Berkshire	1173.135
2016	Surrey	1198.173	Hampshire	1188.139	Northants, Leics	1186.137
	,		·		and Rutland	
2017	Surrey	1197.178	Nottinghamshire	1187.140	London	1184.145
2018	Surrey	1193.163	Hampshire	1184.145	Lancashire	1171.127
2019	Surrey	1185.160		1176.138	Norfolk	1168.147
2020	· · · <b>,</b>		ompetition held due			
2021	Surrey	1183.173			Berkshire	1175.133
2022	Surrey	790.087	Hertfordshire	773.081	Berkshire	773.079
2023	Surrey	1188.154		1172.120	Northumberland	1198.136
	- • • j				and Durham	
2024	Surrey	1172.148	Norfolk	1165.126	Northants, Leics	1154.111
					and Rutland	

English County Rifle Championships

## KGV Results for 2024

## Heats

Ea	st	Total
1.	Norfolk	873.097
2.	Hertfordshire	866.088
3.	Suffolk	859.081
Но	me Counties	Total
1.	Surrey	1041.142
2.	Sussex	1026.090
3.	Kent	1014.104
Mi	dlands	Total
1.	Northants, Leicestershire and Rutland	607.053
2.	Nottinghamshire	605.057
3.	Lincolnshire	575.033
No	rth	Total
1.	Yorkshire	1021.107
		1021.107
2.	County of Lancashire	1019.126
	County of Lancashire Northumberland and Durham	
3.	•	1019.126
3.	Northumberland and Durham	1019.126 995.090
3. <b>So</b>	Northumberland and Durham uth	1019.126 995.090 <b>Total</b>
3. <b>So</b> 1.	Northumberland and Durham uth Berkshire	1019.126 995.090 <b>Total</b> 1182.141
3. <b>So</b> 1. 2.	Northumberland and Durham <b>uth</b> Berkshire Hampshire London	1019.126 995.090 <b>Total</b> 1182.141 1179.135
3. <b>So</b> 1. 2. 3.	Northumberland and Durham <b>uth</b> Berkshire Hampshire London	1019.126 995.090 <b>Total</b> 1182.141 1179.135
3. 1. 2. 3. <b>We</b>	Northumberland and Durham uth Berkshire Hampshire London est	1019.126 995.090 <b>Total</b> 1182.141 1179.135 1177.138

## English County Rifle Championships KGV Final

1. Surrey

Captain:	Ensor M.J.
Adjutant:	Cutts P.B.
Coaches:	Richards W.C.P., Lowe D.

	300	500	600	Total
Underwood J.C.	50.009	50.005	50.005	150.019
Raincock T.J.D.	49.006	50.008	50.008	149.022
Millar M.R.M.	49.007	50.005	50.007	149.019
Ramsey K.W.D.	50.009	49.006	48.007	147.022
Patel P.M.	50.008	49.009	48.004	147.021
Broad W.J.D.	50.008	49.005	48.004	147.017
Burch J.R.L.	49.004	46.004	47.005	142.013
Waldern H.J.W.	46.004	49.007	46.004	141.015
	393.055	392.049	387.044	1172.148
Norfolk	390.048	391.036	384.042	1165.126
Northants, Leics & Rutland	388.038	390.042	376.031	1154.111
Berkshire	388.054	386.046	375.036	1149.136
Somerset	382.031	388.048	378.034	1148.113
Yorkshire	365.029	370.027	356.021	1091.077
	Raincock T.J.D. Millar M.R.M. Ramsey K.W.D. Patel P.M. Broad W.J.D. Burch J.R.L.	Underwood J.C.       50.009         Raincock T.J.D.       49.006         Millar M.R.M.       49.007         Ramsey K.W.D.       50.009         Patel P.M.       50.008         Broad W.J.D.       50.008         Burch J.R.L.       49.004         Waldern H.J.W.       46.004         Norfolk       390.048         Northants, Leics & Rutland       388.038         Berkshire       388.054         Somerset       382.031	Underwood J.C.         50.009         50.005           Raincock T.J.D.         49.006         50.008           Millar M.R.M.         49.007         50.005           Ramsey K.W.D.         50.009         49.006           Patel P.M.         50.008         49.009           Broad W.J.D.         50.008         49.005           Burch J.R.L.         49.004         46.004           Waldern H.J.W.         46.004         49.007           Norfolk         390.048         391.036           Northants, Leics & Rutland         388.038         390.042           Berkshire         388.054         388.046	Underwood J.C.50.00950.00550.005Raincock T.J.D.49.00650.00850.008Millar M.R.M.49.00750.00550.007Ramsey K.W.D.50.00949.00648.007Patel P.M.50.00849.00948.004Broad W.J.D.50.00849.00548.004Burch J.R.L.49.00446.00447.005Waldern H.J.W.46.00449.00746.004Norfolk390.048391.036384.042Northants, Leics & Rutland388.038390.042376.031Berkshire388.054386.046375.036Somerset382.031388.048378.034

## Result of the Grist Cup 2024

	King George V Cup	County Short	County Long	Aggregate
1. Surrey	1172.148	791.107	586.064	2549.319
2. Norfolk	1165.126	791.104	586.067	2542.294
3. Somerset	1148.113	786.090	580.060	2514.263
4. Northants, Leics and Rutland	1154.111	784.093	571.043	2509.247
5. Berkshire	1149.136	781.099	578.057	2508.292
6. Yorkshire	1091.077	775.081	573.049	2439.207

#### National Match Rules of the "National Challenge Trophy" Ordered by the Council of the National Match (Revised in 2024)

- a) There shall be an Annual Match known as "The National Match" between English, Scottish, Irish, and Welsh Teams.
- b) There shall be one team for each of the Nationalities. Each team may include a captain, adjutant, main coach, up to 5 coaches and up to 5 reserves and shall include 20 shooting members up to a maximum of 33 members.
- c) (a) The test of nationality shall be either
  - (1) Country of birth, or
  - (2) Descent from parents or grandparents who were qualified by country of birth or
  - (3) Country of residence for a continuous period of not less than five years immediately preceding the date of the Match.
  - (b) A person who has been a member of a team of one of the Nationalities specified in Rule 1 in the National Match or in any match under the direction or control of the NRA shall not thereafter be eligible to shoot for another Nationality in the National match.
  - (c) A person who has been a member of a team which has shot against any Nationality for which he or she is qualified to shoot under paragraph (a) of this Rule or against Great Britain, in any match under the direction or control of the NRA may not be a member of a team in the National match during the following two-and-a-half-years.
  - (d) A person may not be a member of a team in the National Match in any year in which he or she is a member of an officially accredited Overseas Team.
  - (e) A person who has been a team member for a particular country under the rules in force at that time shall remain qualified to shoot for that country in perpetuity.
  - (f) Participation in the NRA Cadet International Match or any cadet competition does not count for the purposes of Rules 3(b) or 3(c).
- d) The National Match shall normally take place at the Annual Meeting of the National Rifle Association at Bisley, but every fourth year it may be held at another venue within the United Kingdom determined by each Nationality in alphabetical order i.e. England, Ireland, Scotland, Wales starting with Scotland in year 2008. If that Nationality cannot hold the Match, the next Nationality in the rota will organise the Match away from Bisley. The Council of the XX Club of the Nationality whose turn it is to organise the Match away from Bisley shall notify in writing the other XX Clubs and the NRA not later than 15th October following the last Match of the date and place in the United Kingdom of the Match for the ensuing year.
- e) (a) All matters concerning the National Match, not by these rules placed within the province of the Team Captain shall be in the charge and control of the Council of the National Match.

The Council shall consist of a President and the Captain and two other Representatives of each Nationality.

The President of the Council shall be appointed for one year by each Country in turn in alphabetical order, i.e., England, Ireland, Scotland, Wales.

- (b) The Council shall elect an Honorary Secretary, who need not be a member of the Council, to serve for such a period as the Council shall determine.
- (c) A Meeting of the Council may be convened at any time by the Honorary Secretary at the request of the President or of any of the Captains.

Any such Meetings shall be summoned by at least 14 days' notice in writing to every member of the Council. Such notice shall specify the place, day and hour of the Meeting and the general nature of the business to be transacted.

Length of such notice may be reduced at the discretion of the President if the urgency of the business to be discussed in his opinion so requires.

- (d) At all Meetings of the Council every member shall be entitled to one vote upon every question raised. In the case of equality of votes the President shall have a second or casting vote. In the absence of the President the members present shall elect one of their members to act as Chairman. A Chairman so elected shall in the event of equality of votes have a second or casting vote.
- (e) The quorum at all meetings of the Council shall be seven.
- f) The XX Club Council of each Nationality shall in such manner and for such term of office as it may think fit elect or cause to be elected the Captain of the Team of its own Nationality and its other Representatives on the Council of the National Match.
- g) (a) In the event of the Match being held elsewhere than at Bisley the Captain of the team in whose Country the Match is to be held shall be responsible in consultation with the other Captains, for all arrangements in connection with the Match.
  - (b) Each Captain shall be responsible for all the matters in connection with his or her team including the selection and conduct of its members and he or she shall have the absolute control of his or her team in all matters relating to the Match.
  - (c) Each Captain shall nominate an Adjutant who shall deputise for him or her in the event of circumstances preventing him or her from fulfilling any of the duties of his or her office.
  - (d) Each Captain shall appoint an Umpire unless the Captains of all competing teams agree to appoint one Umpire only.
- h) The following conditions shall apply to the National Match:
  - (a) The rules of the NRA current for the year of the Match as to ranges, targets, arms, scoring and position for the first stage of the King's Prize shall normally apply.
  - (b) At each range the number of shots shall be seven with one convertible sighter.
  - (c) Unless the Captains of all competing teams otherwise agree only such ammunition as issued at the Meeting where the Match is held shall be used.
  - (d) There may be Check-Register Keepers at each firing point.
  - (e) In all matters not provided for by these Rules the current Rules of the NRA shall apply.

i) These Rules may be revoked, added to or altered by a majority of at least twothirds of the members of the Council present at any Meeting of the Council held at Bisley during the NRA Meeting and summoned by at least 28 days' notice in writing to all members of the Council specifying the intention to propose the revocation, addition or alteration together with full particulars thereof.

Rule 5 (e) shall apply to any such Meeting.

Where the alteration to these Rules is unanimously approved by the members of Council the alterations will come into effect without the need for a Meeting of the Council.

By order of the Council of the National Match.

For clarification the XX Club Councils referred to in Para 6 above refer to the Councils of the English Twenty Club, the Irish Rifle Club (Bisley), the Scottish XX Council and the Welsh Rifle Association.

E.Jeens Honorary Secretary National Match Council 20.07.2024

## **Guidelines for National Team Selection**

The Club Council at its meetings on 1 June 1952 and 24 May 1953 resolved that the following policy should be followed when selecting the National team.

- (a) The team and reserves should be selected from those competing in the English Twenty Club Championship.
- (b) The winner of the Queen's Prize in the preceding year, if qualified under (a), should be included in the team.
- (c) Half the team should consist of those who have not shot more than once before; at least five should not have shot in the National match at all before.
- (d) The five reserves should never before have shot or been a reserve in this match.

District Superintendents are requested to notify the Captain of promising shooters in their districts.

## **Results Summary**

2000	England	2060.246	Scotland	2048.239	Ireland	2036.210	Wales	2029.217
2001	England	2058.240	Scotland	2024.208	Ireland	2015.201	Wales	1978.174
2002	Ireland	2041.221	England	2036.226	Scotland	2012.208	Wales	1975.161
2003	England	2071.264	Ireland	2042.221	Scotland	2041.225	Wales	2013.216
2004		2065.257					Wales	2008.199
2005	England	2034.197	Ireland	2021.204	Scotland	2001.173	Wales	1982.165
2006	England	2037.221	Scotland	2025.190	Ireland	1992.184	Wales	1981.171
2007	England	2014.217	Scotland	2010.195	Ireland	2006.182	Wales	1987.173
2008	England	2046.204	Scotland	2007.158	Ireland	2000.181	Wales	1983.166
2009	England	2077.292	Ireland	2050.239	Wales	2046.221	Scotland	2044.228
2010	Scotland	2070.277	England	2069.276	Wales	2056.241	Ireland	2055.246
2011		2075.279				2066.261	Wales	2051.246
2012	England	2072.268	Scotland	2049.228	Wales	2048.223	Ireland	2036.224
2013	England	2063.263	Wales	2047.226	Ireland	2043.221	Scotland	2040.234
2014	England	*2087.278	Scotland	2062.264	Ireland	2060.256	Wales	2043.223
2015	England	2061.247	Ireland	2056.246	Wales	2049.249	Scotland	2036.236
2016	Wales	2084.298	England	2083.323	Scotland	2081.291	Ireland	2056.259
2017	England	2063.270	Scotland	2024.209	Wales	2020.191	Ireland	2017.203
2018	England	2018.197	Ireland	2000.184	Scotland	1996.172	Wales	1995.181
2019	England	2037.219	Wales	2020.199	Ireland	2001.181	Scotland	1990.180
2020		Matc	h not held	due to Co	oronavirus	pandemic		
2020		A Lav	wrence ma	atch was h	eld at Bis	ley instead	l.	
2021	Wales	2067.249	England	2065.288	Scotland	2059.230	Ireland	2056.269
2022	England	2076.290	Wales	2046.220	Ireland	2038.233	Scotland	2030.199
2023	England	2076.268	Scotland	2031.217	Ireland	2031.203	Wales	2023.213
2024	England	2073.275	Wales	2060.242	Scotland	2048.230	Ireland	2045.223
* re	ecord score							

	<i>National Match</i> <b>Result for 2024</b> The National Challenge Trophy: England						
			300	500	600	Total	
1.	England						
	Captain:	Roberts R					
	Adjutant:	Armstrong					
	Main Coach:	Langley J					
	Coaches:		Messer J.H		G.P.,		
			C.N., Stewa				
	Reserves:		.L., Farley		n T.S.,		
		Radkovsk	ii A.R.,Wa	rren R.R.			
			300	500	600	Total	
	Mitchell C.J.		35.005	35.007	35.006	105.018	
	Raincock T.J.	.D.	35.005	35.006	35.006	105.017	
	Luckman D.C	-	35.007	35.004	35.006	105.017	
	Hince J.M.		35.005	35.007	35.005	105.017	
	Keel M.J.		35.003	35.006	35.006	105.015	
	Heales C.D.		35.005	35.005	35.005	105.015	
	Asquith-Bear	d H.G.	35.005	35.007	35.003	105.015	
	Ball N.J.		35.007	35.004	35.003	105.014	
	Millar M.R.M.		35.004	35.004	35.006	105.014	
	Button M.C.J.		35.002	35.004	35.005	105.011	
	Good A.P.		35.003	35.004	35.004	105.011	
	Furniss R.L.		34.006	35.006	35.004	104.016	
	Cook J.M.E.		34.004	35.006	35.005	104.015	
	Crisp L.S.	_	35.004	34.004	35.005	104.013	
	Hayton S.M.E		34.003	35.005	35.001	104.009	
	Patel P.M.	-	35.007	35.005	33.003	103.015	
	Underwood J	.C.	34.005	35.006	33.003	102.014	
	Hatfield P.A.		34.005	33.003	35.004	102.012	
	Ensor M.J.		32.004	34.003	35.005	101.012	
	Leech A.J.		29.002	33.003	32.000	94.005	
~	Totals		686.091	694.099	693.085	2073.275	
	Wales		686.078	690.085	684.079	2060.242	
3.	Scotland		671.071	689.078	688.081	2048.230	
4.	Ireland		677.068	687.088	681.067	2045.223	

## **Captains and Adjutants**

	Captain	Adjutant
2000	Cummings I.L.	Wicker L.T.
2001	Pugh K.O.	Barrington R.F.
2002	Comins S.J.	Warburton J.D.
2003	Saunders A.J.D.	Riley H.W.
2004	Merry P.	Weeden C.P.

	Captain	Adjutant
2005	Painting C.A.	Stevens P.R.C.
2006	Friend D.A.	Cload J.
2007	Pattinson S.J.	Watson J.A.
2008	Horrocks A.R.	Taylor D.A.
2009	Aspin A.F.	Bromley P.B.
2010	Stevens P.R.C.	Thomson A.C.
2011	Carter S.J.	Riley H.W.
2012	Fugeman M.R.	Dickenson C.E.S.
2013	Brooks C.M.	Rose D.A.
2014	Hinchliffe P.N.	Rylands T.G.
2015	de Launay A.J.C.B.	Lothian A.W.C.
2016	Winney R.	Allen D.H.
2017	Rosling R.P.	Bloomfield J.P.S.
2018	Belither S.	Cannings E.J.
2019	Warburton J.D.	Bromley P.B.
2020	No competition due to	Covid
2021	Messer J.H.	Ball N.J.
2022	Thomas S.A.	Liversage M.
2023	Penrose S.N.S.	Day H.A.
2024	Roberts R.M.	Armstrong D.R.

#### Coaches

This section lists those who have coached in the National from 2000. Suffix m denotes main coach.

Allen D.H. - 1996. 02. 03. 05 Aspin A.F. - 2010 Baker R.B.C. - 2004 Belither S. - 1999, 00, 04, 07, 15 Brooks C.M. - 2005 Cheshire C.C.C. - 2003 Cleveland S.L. - 1996, 97, 03, 09 Cload J. - 2012 Collings J.S. - 1997, 98, 99, 01, 02, 04, 05, 06 Comins S.J. - 1989, 90, 91, 01 Compton E.S. - 2021 Dickenson C.E.S. - 2008, 10 Dowley S. - 2019, 23 Edwards P.R. - 1988, 93, 94, 95, 00, 04m Ensor M.J. - 2006, 07, 09, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 21, 22, 23 Hatcher R.M. - 1999, 00, 01 Heales C.D. - 2018 Hinchliffe P.N. - 1987, 89, 93, 95, 97, 98m, 99m, 02m, 03m, 07m, 08m, 09m, 11

Kent P.G. - 1991, 92, 94, 95, 96, 99, 04, 05m, 08, 10m Langley J.D.S. - 1996, 98, 03, 05, 06m, 07, 11m, 12, 13, 15, 16, 17m, 18, 19, 22m, 23m Lowe D. - 2014, 19, 21, 22, 24 Luckman D.C. - 2006 Messer J.H. - 2001, 08, 09, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15. 16. 24 Milton C. - 2016 Nelson G.P;2016, 19, 22, 24 Nuttall E.J. – 2013 Patel P.M. - 2018 Richards D.F.P. - 2002, 03, 09 Richards W.C.P. - 1995, 97, 98, 00, 02, 08, 09, 10, 11, 12, 13m, 14, 15, 16m, 17, 18m, 19, 21, 22, 23 Ringer T.A. - 2006, 07 Roberts R.M. - 1988, 90, 94, 00, 01m, 04, 06, 15, 17 Rosling R.P. - 1989, 90, 91, 92, 93, 94, 00m Rylands T.G. - 2017

Stewart R. – 2023, 24 Taylor D.A. – 2005 Tremlett C.N. – 1997, 98, 02, 07, 10, 12m, 14m, 15m, 17, 19m; 21m, 22, 23, 24 Underwood J.C. – 2011, 13 Webster J.G.M. – 2014 Winney R. – 1995, 96, 08 Winney B.J. – 2018, 21

#### Shooters and Reserves

This section lists those who have shot or been reserve for England in the National from 2000. Suffix r denotes reserve.

Ali S.Y.M. - 2019 Allen D.H. – 1998r, 00 Armstrong D. – 2022r Armstrong D.R. - 1989r, 91, 95, 98, 11, 12, 14, 16, 17, 19 Ashworth A.I. - 2015r Asquith C.R.M. - 2014r Asquith-Beard H.G. - 2023r, 24 Ball N.J. - 1990, 93, 94, 96, 97, 98, 00, 01, 03, 05, 07, 08, 09, 10, 11, 12, 19r, 22, 24 Barnes A.P. - 1997r, 09, 13 Barnett G.C.D. - 1993, 94, 96, 97, 00, 01, 02, 03, 04, 07, 08, 09, 11, 12, 15, 16, 17, 19, 21, 23 Bedding D.P. - 2003 Belither S. - 1978, 80, 81, 82, 83, 84, 85, 86, 87. 88. 89. 90. 91. 92. 93. 94. 97. 01 Bellringer J.E.M. – 1977, 79, 83, 85, 87, 89, 90, 91, 92, 96, 13, 23 Binder S-J. – 2004r. 08 Birtwistle R.J.H. - 2013, 16 Blake D.J. – 2005r, 11, 12 Bloomfield J.P.S. - 1977, 78, 79, 80, 81, 82, 85, 86, 88, 89, 90, 91, 93, 99, 04 Booth R.J. – 1991r, 98, 12 Boston M.Z.J. - 2003r, 01, 04, 06 Bramwell H.P.C. – 2021r Brasier N.R.J. - 1990, 91, 93, 96, 99, 02, 08 Broad W.J.D. - 2012, 17, 23 Bromley A.E. - 2022 Bromley P.B. - 1983, 84, 85, 86, 87, 90, 91, 02, 06, 07, 11 Brooking J. – 2016r, 17, 19 Brooks C.M. - 1987r, 06 Brown A.I. - 2013r Bryson A.C.H. – 2011 Buckley M.E. - 2003 Bullard B.E. - 2007r Bullock T.J. – 2014r. 18 Burch J.R.L. - 2024r Button M.C.J. - 2002r, 03, 13, 18, 22, 24

Cane J.A. - 1999, 03 Cane S.J. - 1999, 03, 10 Cann G.A. - 1981, 86, 92, 99, 00, 03 Cannings E.J. – 2015 Chapman P.A.R. – 2002r Chapman-Sheath P.J. - 2012r, 13, 21 Chown A. - 1972, 73, 74, 75, 79, 83, 88, 92, 95.04 Clark D. - 2016r, 21r Clarke A.J. - 2015r, 17, 21 Clarke R.E. - 2007r Clarke T.P. - 1984r, 87, 89, 99, 04 Clifford Evans C.J. (née Aldridge), 96r, 09 Cload J. - 2000r, 01, 04, 05, 07, 10, 21 Cole-Hawkins N. - 2008r, 19 Coleman D.G.M. - 1982, 84, 87, 88, 90, 98, 99, 00, 01, 04, 06, 16, 18 Comins R.D. - 1990r, 91, 00 Compton E.S. - 2005r, 06, 07, 12r Cook J.M.E. - 2016r, 17, 24 Cooper W.D. - 2023r Cotton G.S. - 1997r, 06, 14 Coventry R.I. - 2000r Craig B.N. – 2014r Cressy K.P. – 2011r Crisp L.S. - 2024 Crispin D.C. – 1998r, 00, 08 Crowson L.A.E. - 2014r, 16, 17, 18 Cubitt T.C. - 2022 Cuming C.H. - 2021, 22 Cutts P.B. – 2015r Dash S.F.D. – 2013r Dashwood D.H.W. - 2001r Davies G.W.D. - 2008, 14 Davison I.P. - 2005r, 06, 13 Day H.A. - 2010r, 12, 13 de Vere D.A. - 2012, 15 de Voil P. - 2019r Deane J.R. - 2002. 04. 11 Dickenson C.E.S. – 2022 Dickson E.C. - 2008r, 15, 17

Dix R.A. – 2002r, 11, 12 Dixon W.J.G. - 2001 Dowley S.A.J. - 2021 Drysdale T.M. – 2013, 14, 15, 16, 18 Dyson D.C. - 1998, 99, 03 East S.J. - 2010r, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 19 Eayrs R.L. - 2015r, 16 Edwards R.K. – 2023r Eldridge A.D. – 2002 Ellis R.E. – 2000 Ensor M.J. - 2010, 24 Errey A.S. - 2010r Farley K.E. – 2024r Feast E.M.V. - 2023r Fleck K.A. – 2019r, 22 Foster H.A. - 2007 Fowler A. - 2019 Fugeman M.R. - 1985r, 08 Furniss R.L. - 2021, 22, 24 Gardiner R.H. - 2013r Gass D.J. - 1993r, 94, 02, 05 Glanville S.D.J. - 2018 Good A.P. - 2021r, 23, 24 Green S.J. - 2003r, 05 Green T.M. – 1980r, 85, 00 Griggs P.D. – 1977, 04 Grounds A.D.E. – 2008r Hakim P.M. – 1997r, 04, 18r Haley C.D. – 2001r, 09, 11, 13, 18 Harding S.P. - 2008, 23 Hatfield P.A. – 2024 Hayton S.M.E. – 2022r, 24 Heales C.D. - 2017r, 23, 24 Hebblethwaite R.A.V. - 1997, 10 Hinde J.R.J. – 2011r Hince J.M. - 2021, 22, 23, 24 Hodge S.J. - 2021, 23 Holden P.J.R. - 2000r, 01, 02 Holmes J.M. - 1988r, 05, 07 Holmes P.S. - 2012r, 18 Horrocks A.R. - 1966r, 05 Howard H.A.D. - 2016, 21r Hull J.B. – 2010r, 11, 15, 18 Jeal G.R. - 2018 Jenvey M.D. – 2013r, 22 Jobson R.A. - 2009r Jones A.R.H. - 1983r, 86, 87, 90, 91, 97, 03 Joseph E.G. - 2013, 15 Keates J. – 2018r, 23 Keel M.J. - 2024

Keen T.S. - 2024r Kennedy L.E. - 2017, 18 Kent J.C.T. - 2008r, 09, 10 Kent P.G. - 1979, 82, 83, 84, 85, 87, 89, 97, 98, 07, 09, 12, 13, 14 Laing-Baker T. - 2015r, 16 Langley J.D.S. - 1993r, 95, 00, 08 Leech A.J. - 2024 Leighton C.L. – 2012r Lewis J.W.E. - 1995, 06, 08, 10 Lindsay J.A. - 2012, 15 Liversage M. - 2013r, 15 Lothian J.W.E. – 2009r Lothian. A.W.C. - 1986, 00 Lowe D. - 2010r Luckman A.J. - 1993r, 94, 96, 97, 98, 99, 02, 03.04.05.06 Luckman D.C. - 1995r, 96, 97, 98, 00, 01, 03, 04, 05, 07, 08, 09, 10, 11, 12, 13, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 21, 22, 23, 24 Luckman S.V. (née Kent), 04r, 05, 10 Lygoe R.J. - 2004, 15 Mace L.K. - 1999r, 04, 08 Mawson C.E. - 2019 Merton-Jones S.A. - 2004 Messer J.H. - 1989r, 92, 97, 98, 99, 02, 05, 06, 17, 19 Millar M.R.M. - 2014, 19, 23, 24 Milner K.E. – 2022r, 23 Mitchell C.J. - 2014, 19, 21, 22, 24 Morton C.J. - 2001r, 02, 05, 06 Morley A.C. - 2017r, 23 Mott R.J.R. - 2000r Nelson G.P, - 2009r, 15, 17, 23 Nice J.P. – 2016, 18 Nuthall D.E. - 2012, 17 Nuttall E.J. - 2006r, 07, 09, 19 O'Brien S.P. - 2002 Ogden G.J.F. - 2011r O'Leary M.J. - 2000r Osmond S.J.V. - 2001r, 14, 16, 17, 18 Oxnam P.G. - 2011r Page J.W. - 2018r Palmer G.D. – 2001. 02 Patel P.M. - 1998, 99, 00, 01, 03, 05, 06, 07, 08, 09, 10, 11, 12, 13, 15, 17, 19, 21, 22, 23, 24 Penn N.W. - 2000 Pepera-Hibbert J. – 2019r, 21 Pilgrim A.J. – 1999, 01, 04, 08

Pollock H.H.G. - 2010, 11, 13 Postins S.C. – 2008r, 10 Postle J.R.W. - 2019, 23 Pugsley H.A. - 2014 Pugsley J. - 1978, 88, 89, 97, 00, 02, 03 Purdy M.J. - 2011r, 14, 16 Radkovskii A.R. – 2024r Raincock T.J.D. - 1995r, 98, 06, 07, 11, 13, 14, 16, 17, 18, 21, 22, 24 Ramsay K.W.D. - 2002, 05, 18, 21 Rees D.J.F. - 2007 Richards W.C.P. - 1986, 87, 92, 96, 05 Riley R.H.G. – 2019r Ringer T.A. - 1990r, 93, 94, 95, 97, 98, 01, 02, 08, 09, 10, 14, 22 Rivett-Carnac C. - 2014 Roberts T.J. - 2023r Rose D.A. - 2006r, 07, 14, 16 Rylands T.G. – 1992r, 93, 95, 00, 01, 02, 03, 05, 06, 09 Sanders H.B. - 2007r Shaw M.H. - 2005r Shaw R.W. - 2009r Shaw T.P. - 2021, 23 Sheead R.K. - 2003r, 04 Shouler R.S.F. - 2004r, 05, 06, 14, 17, 21, 22, 23 Shouler S.D. – 2006r, 08, 11 Silver M.W. – 2007r, 13 Skellett C.A. - 2016r Smith T. – 2012r Southall A. - 2017, 18 Speirs A.C. - 1999r, 01, 07 Spencer O.E.J. - 2017r, 18, 19 Stangroom N.D. – 2003r, 95, 98 Staples C.A. - 2018r Stebbings R.N. - 2022r Stevens B.M.A. - 2019 Stevens J.P.M. - 1994r, 99, 02, 03 Stevenson I.R.D. – 2009 Stevenson T.M. - 2017r Stewart R. - 2001r. 05 Sykes A.P. - 2002r

Sykes P.D. – 2004r, 06, 09, 10, 12, 14, 19, 21 Tapster J.P. - 2009, 10 Taylor J.M. – 2002r, 07, 16r Taylor L.G. – 2014r Thomas S.A. – 1980, 81, 82, 83, 84, 88, 91, 92, 96, 03, 07, 12, 14, 15, 17 Thompson J.M.A. – 1973r, 76, 77, 82, 84, 86, 87, 89, 90, 01, 15 Thomson A.C. – 1998r, 01 Todd M. – 2018r Tompson A.T.B. - 1996r, 03, 05, 08 Trembath J.G. - 2015 Tremlett C.N. - 1983, 90, 91, 94, 95, 04, 09 Tuck J.R. - 2009r, 10, 11, 22 Underwood J.C. - 1992, 93, 94, 96, 97, 00, 03, 04, 05, 06, 07, 09, 10, 12, 14, 16, 17, 19, 21, 23.24 Vary R.A.H. - 1997, 01 Verduyn N.J. - 2000, 16 Waldern H.J. - 2021r, 22, 23 Walton M.W.T. - 1993r, 95, 03 Warburton J.D. - 1984, 85, 86, 90, 91, 92, 93, 94, 96, 98, 99, 01, 06, 11, 13, 14, 15, 16 Warren R.R. – 2024r Watson J.A. - 1996, 04, 06, 10, 12, 13, 15, 19 Webb R.A. - 2022r Webster J.G.M. - 1989, 00, 02, 11 Weeden C.P. - 1993r, 95, 02, 03, 16 Welford E.R. – 2005 Wheeler P.R. - 2013, 16, 18 Whicher M.G. – 2005r, 10, 12 Whitby S.J. – 2018 Wicker L.T. - 1979, 92, 08, 11 Wilde A.R. - 2006r, 07, 08, 09 Williams A.A. – 2007r Williamson S.C. - 1996, 97, 00 Winney B.J. - 2017r Wood E.C. - 2004r, 07 Wood M.J. - 2003r, 01 Young B.A. - 2006r, 09 Young D.G. - 1987r, 02, 09 Young S.E. - 2006, 08

## National Match Letter from 2025 Captain

I am honoured to have been appointed as Captain for England in the 2025 National Match. For the match I have appointed Graham Nelson as my Adjutant and Derek Lowe as my main coach. We are hoping to retain the National Trophy. In line with Club policy, half of the team will consist of those who have not shot more than once before and at least five will not have shot in the National match at all before. To be eligible, make sure you've entered the Club Championship and you're up to date with your subs.

The Captaincy includes leading teams in the RAF Match in May and the Lawrence Match during the Scottish Open in June. The RAF Match is on Saturday May 17<sup>th</sup> and it is an opportunity for aspiring uncapped and once capped shooters to develop their match skills and demonstrate their abilities. To apply to shoot, please send an email to <u>national@englishtwenty.org.uk</u> The current Lions squad have been given priority but there are still please to shoot.

plenty of places to shoot. The team will be selected one month before the match. Practice targets will be available in the morning. 50% of the cost of targets and markers will be covered by the Club, the rest, along with ammo will be paid by the team.

The Scottish Open will be held from 13<sup>th</sup> -15<sup>th</sup> June, with the Lawrence Match on the afternoon of Saturday 14<sup>th</sup>. It's a great meeting on an amazing range and well worth considering making the trip to take part.

I look forward to selecting some of you to represent England in the National Match and I wish you all good shooting for the 2025 season.

Martin Liversage, Captain, National Match 2025.

## Mackinnon Results Summary

- 2000 England 1162.124, Australia 1160.120, Scotland 1156.110, South Africa 1155.096, Ireland 1142.115, Canada 1140.095, USA 11346.101, Wales 1133.110, Guernsey 1116.079, Kenya 1111.096, West Indies 1109.088, Jersey 1109.077, New Zealand Goodwill 1105.073, Germany 1089.063
- 2001 England 1154.120, Canada 1142.110, Ireland 1139.099, Scotland 1135.101, Wales 1127.086, Jersey 1108.084, Guernsey 1091.082
- 2002 England 1156.108, Scotland 1132.93, Ireland 1122.87, Canada 1109.89, USA 1109.77, Wales 1106.90, Guernsey 1088.75, Jersey 1085.67, Germany 1034.53
- 2003 South Africa 1131.99, England 1131.96, Australia 1129.91, Scotland 1127.102, Jersey 1122.93, Canada 1119.89, Wales 1116.91, USA 116.84, Ireland 1113.88, New Zealand 1102.61, Kenya 1080.66, Guernsey 1077.73, West Indies 1053.66, Germany 1028.47
- 2004 England 1139.104, Scotland 1114.087, Ireland 1108.082, Jersey 1105.089, Wales 1105.079, Guernsey 1104.072, Canada 1059.072, Kenya 1056.060
- 2005 England 1169.131, Wales 1164.116, Jersey 1156.114, Scotland 1153.106, Ireland 1142.106, Canada 1131.084, Kenya 1128.1107, Guernsey 1124.085, Germany 1092.082
- 2006 England 1159.121, Scotland 1129.088, Guernsey, 1127.093, Canada 1115.084, Jersey 1112.092, Wales 1111.080, Ireland 1109.085, Germany 1022.084
- 2007 England 1163.118, Ireland 1158.112, Wales 1155.108, Scotland 1146.104, Jersey 1138.099, Canada 1124.090, Guernsey 1111.085
- 2008 England 1153.106, Scotland 1153.097, Ireland 142.110, Canada 1109.090, Wales 1108.085, Jersey 1099.071, Guernsey 1090.078, Kenya 1053.054
- 2009 England 1163.125, Scotland 1140.111, Ireland 1134.100, Canada 1122.084, Guernsey 1118.091, Wales 1115.099, Jersey 1110.097, Kenya 1075.060
- 2010 England 1173.140, Australia 1154.104, Ireland 1147.104, Scotland 1142.108, Wales 1132.114, Guernsey 1132.111, Canada 1125.099, Jersey 1109.090, Kenya 1083.081, Germany 1082.067
- 2011 England 1156.126, Ireland 1141.116, Jersey 1132.100, Scotland 1131.099, Guernsey 1117.080, Canada 1092.080, Kenya 1050.063, Wales 1015.082
- 2012 England 1176.139, Scotland 1170.133, Wales 1170.126, Ireland 1164.136, Jersey 1154.118, Canada 1150.112, Guernsey 1138.115
- 2013 Australia 1172.128, England 1162.128, Scotland 1158.134, Wales 1158.123, Ireland 1154.114 Jersey 1144.110, Canada 1143.104 Guernsey 1135.101
- 2014 England 1188.149\*, Scotland 1175.129, Wales 1167.130, Jersey 1164.132, Ireland 1155.98, Canada 1153.115, Guernsey 1152.111, Australia 1145.106, BDMP Germany 1116.080
- 2015 England 1142.100, Ireland 1132.096, Wales 1114.090, Scotland 11.088, Jersey 1105.090, Australia 1081.069, Guernsey 1068.058, Canada 1065.066
- 2016 England 1169.143, Ireland 1160.127, Scotland 1159.116, Canada 1157.111, Australia 1156.102, Wales 1154.123, Guernsey 1153.113, Jersey 1133.101, BDMP Germany 1122.089

- 2017 England 1174.146, Scotland 1159.126, Ireland 1150.122, Wales 1150.114, Guernsey 1142.108, Jersey 1129.097, Australia 1126.105, Canada 1117.104, Kenya 1114.092
- 2018 England 1085.74, Wales 1070.73, Ireland 1065.66, Guernsey 1060.69, Australia 1040.59, Scotland 1038.55, Canada 1033.54, Kenya 1023.47, Jersey 1018.50
- 2019 England 1170.143, Scotland 1159.123, USA 1157.108, Australia 1152.124, Ireland 1147.120, Wales 1145.126, Jersey 1132.101, Guernsey 1125.104, Kenya 1104.74, Canada 1087.93
- 2020 England 1149.100, Ireland 1139.99, Wales 1132.81, Scotland 1117.92, Channel Islands 1115.96
- 2021 England 1179.143, Scotland 1169.137, Ireland 1169.136, Wales 1163.113, Guernsey 1159.123, Jersey 1149.101
- 2022 England 1146.115, Canada 1132.98, Ireland 1130.113, Scotland 1120.84, Wales 1104.91, Guernsey 1101.86, Kenya 1092.77, Jersey 1072.65
- 2023 England 1132.104, Australia 1130.108, Ireland 1127.89, Wales 1116.96, Guernsey 1115.103, Scotland 1109.98, Jersey 1091.67, BDMP Germany 1090.82, Kenya 1085.75, Canada 1082.83
- 2024 England 1166.146, Ireland 1158.123, Scotland 1148.116, Wales 1147.119, Canada 1143.108, Australia 1128.99, Jersey 1122.79, Guernsey 1121.87
- record score

## Result for 2024

## 1. The Challenge Cup: England

Captain:	Bellringer J.E.M.
Adjutant:	Cleveland S.L.
Main Coach:	Tremlett C.N.
Coaches:	Langley J.D.S., Lowe D., Patel P.M.
Reserves:	Ball N.J., Brown A.I., Taylor L.G.

	900	1000	Total
Raincock T.J.D.	50.009	50.003	100.012
Luckman D.C.	49.008	50.007	99.015
Armstrong D.R.	50.010	48.005	98.015
Holden P.J.R.	50.009	48.002	98.011
Ringer T.A.	48.006	50.004	98.010
Millar M.R.M.	48.007	49.005	97.012
Warburton J.D.	49.006	48.006	97.012
Richards D.F.P.	49.007	48.004	97.011
Ensor M.J.	49.008	47.005	96.013
Sykes P.D.	50.008	46.004	96.012
Underwood J.C.	50.008	46.003	96.011
Postle J.R.W.	49.008	45.004	94.012
Totals	591.094	575.052	1166.146
2. Ireland	585.065	573.058	1158.123
3. Scotland	581.069	567.047	1148.116
4. Wales	588.081	559.038	1147.119
5. Canada	589.072	554.036	1143.108
6. Australia	576.055	552.044	1128.099
7. Jersey	572.043	550.036	1122.079
8. Guernsey	583.056	538.031	1121.087

## **Captains and Adjutants**

	Captain
2000	Hinchliffe P.N.
2001	Aspin A.F.
2002	Jackman J.F.
2003	Bloomfield J.P.S.
2004	Pugh K.O.
2005	Saunders A.J.D.
2006	de Launay A.J.C.B.
2007	Merry P.
2008	Belither S.
2009	Painting C.A.
2010	Horrocks A.R.
2011	Thomas S.A.
2012	Warburton J.D.

Adjutant Webster J.G.M. Fitzsimons T.J. Brooks C.M. Lowe D. Penrose S.N.S. Riley H.W. Dyson D.C. Bromley P.B. Lothian A.W.C. Fugeman, M.R. Taylor, D.A. Winney R. Bromley P.B.

	Captain	Adjutant
2013	Webster, J.G.M.	Watson J.A.
2014	Bromley P.B.	Warburton J.D.
2015	Langley J.D.S	Lewis J.W.E.
2016	Brooks C.M.	Rose D.A.
2017	Messer J.H.	Roberts R.M.
2018	Richards D.F.P.	Wheeler P.R.
2019	Richards W.C.P.	de Vere D.
2020	Tremlett C.N.	Furniss R.L.
2021	Thompson J.M.A.	Rose D.A.
2022	Rylands T.G.	Lothian A.W.C.
2023	Underwood J.C.	Whicher M.G.
2024	Bellringer J.E.M.	Cleveland S.L.
	0	h

#### Coaches

This section lists those who have coached in the Mackinnon from 2000. Suffix m denotes main coach.

 $\label{eq:constraint} \begin{array}{l} \mbox{Cleveland S.L.} & - \ 1998, \ 03 \\ \mbox{Cload J.} & - \ 2009 \\ \mbox{Collings J.S.} & - \ 1998, \ 99, \ 00, \ 02, \ 03, \ 04m \\ \mbox{Dowley S.A.J.} & - \ 2020, \ 22, \ 23 \\ \mbox{Ensor M.J.} & - \ 2006, \ 07, \ 08, \ 11, \ 12, \ 13, \ 15, \ 16, \\ \ 17, \ 18, \ 19, \ 20m, \ 21, \ 23 \\ \mbox{Harvey D.Q.M.} & - \ 2001 \\ \mbox{Hinchliffe P.N.} & - \ 1988, \ 89, \ 94, \ 95, \ 96, \ 99m, \\ \ 01m, \ 05m, \ 07m, \ 08m, \ 10m, \ 15m \\ \mbox{Kent P.G.} & - \ 1993, \ 94, \ 95, \ 96, \ 99, \ 05, \ 06 \\ \mbox{Langley J.D.S.} & - \ 1997, \ 00, \ 02, \ 05, \ 06m, \ 07, \ 08, \\ \ 10, \ 11, \ 12, \ 13, \ 16, \ 17m, \ 19m, \ 21, \ 22m, \ 24 \\ \mbox{Lowe D.} & - \ 2004, \ 09, \ 11, \ 12, \ 13, \ 14, \ 16 \end{array}$ 

Nelson G.P. – 2020 Patel P.M. – 2024 Richards D.F.P. – 2001, 05, 19 Richards W.C.P. – 1995, 96, 97, 98, 00m, 01, 02m, 09, 11m, 12m, 13m, 14m, 15, 16m, 17, 18m, 21m, 23m Ringer T.A. – 2008 Roberts R.M. – 1991, 92, 04, 15, 21 Rosling R.P. – 1988, 89, 91, 92, 94, 03m Tremlett C.N. – 1999, 00, 02, 03, 04, 06, 07, 09m, 10, 14, 22, 23, 24m Webster J.G.M. – 2010 Winney B.J. – 2018

### **Shooters and Reserves**

This section lists those who have shot or been reserve for England in the Mackinnon from 2000. Suffix r denotes reserve.

Armstrong D.R. – 2009, 14, 16, 17, 19, 20, 22, 23, 24 Ball N.J. – 1992, 96r, 98, 99, 02, 03, 05, 07, 08, 12, 13, 15, 17, 18, 19r, 20r, 21, 22r, 23, 24r Barnett G.C.D. – 1992r, 94, 95, 96, 97, 00, 02, 03, 04, 05, 07, 08, 09, 10, 11, 12, 13, 15, 16, 17, 19, 21, 22, 23 Belither S. – 1979, 86, 87, 88, 89, 90, 95, 97, 00r, 11r Bellringer J.E.M. – 1983, 85, 86, 89, 91, 92, 96, 97r, 02, 14, 21 Birtwistle R.J.H. – 2016r, 19r Boston M.Z.J. – 2005r, 06r Brasier N.R.J. – 1997, 02, 07, 09, 11 Bromley P.B. – 1988, 90, 92, 94, 99, 00r, 01, 06, 08r, 15 Brooks C.M. – 2001r Brown A.I. – 2024r Bullock J.A. – 2007 Button M.C.J. – 2005, 20, 23 Cane S.J. – 2004 Chapman-Sheath P.J. – 2017r Clark R.J.S.G. – 2009r Clarke T.P. – 1987r, 88r, 08 Cload J. – 2000, 03, 05, 06r, 08, 10, 21 Coleman D.G.M. - 1986, 88r, 93, 98, 99, 00, 02, 06, 07, 20 Crispin D.C. – 2016r, 17 Cudby B.E. – 2004r Daw A.P.W. - 2011 Dickenson C.E.S. - 2020r Dickson E.C. - 2019 Drysdale T.M. - 2014r, 15, 17, 19, 20, 21 Dyson D.C. - 2001 East S.J. - 2012, 13 Ensor M.J. - 2022, 24 Furniss R.L. - 2021, 22 Green S.J. – 2005r Hakim P.M. - 2004r Haley C.D. - 2009, 14, 18 Harding S.P. – 2016r Hince J.M. - 2021r, 23 Holden P.J.R. - 2003r, 04, 05, 07r, 08r, 24 Holmes J.M. - 2004r Hull J.B. - 2011r Jeal G.R. - 2018 Jones A.R.H. - 2001, 04 Keates J. - 2021 Kent J.C.T. – 2010, 11r, 22 Kent P.G. - 1982, 83, 84, 85, 86, 87, 88, 89, 91, 97, 00, 01, 02r, 03, 08, 09, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 23 Laing-Baker T. - 2016 Langley J.D.S. – 1995r, 98, 99r, 01 Lewis J.W.E. - 2013 Lothian A.W.C. – 2001r Luckman A.J. - 1993, 94, 96, 97, 98, 00, 01, 03, 04, 05, 06, 09, 15r Luckman D.C. - 1998, 99, 00, 02, 03, 04, 05, 06, 07, 08, 09, 10, 11, 12, 13, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24 Luckman S.V. (née Kent) - 2012r Lygoe R.J. - 2013r Mace L.K. - 2010r Messer J.H. - 1992r, 94, 95, 96, 97, 98, 99, 00, 01r, 02, 06, 10, 15, 18, 19, 22 Millar M.R.M. – 2014r, 17, 18, 23, 24 Milton C. – 2017r Mitchell C.J. - 2020, 21, 22 Morton C.J. – 2004, 06 Mott R.J.R. – 2005r Nelson G.P. - 2018r, 22, 23 Nuttall E.J. - 2020

Patel P.M. - 1999, 00, 01, 02, 03, 04, 05, 06, 07, 08, 10, 11, 12, 13, 15, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22.23 Penrose S.N.S. - 1984r, 93, 95r, 96r, 00r, 01, 02r, 08 Pilgrim A.J. - 1999, 00, 03 Pollock H.H.G. - 2012, 13r, 14 Postle J.R.W. - 2022r, 24 Pugsley J. - 1986r, 87, 88, 90, 91, 92, 93, 96, 97, 98, 03, 08, 15 Purdy M.J. - 2016, 23r Raincock T.J.D. - 2005, 06, 07, 08, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 20, 22, 23, 24 Ramsey K.W.D. - 2002r, 14r, 18, 20r Richards D.F.P. - 1983, 84, 88, 92, 97r, 02, 04, 15, 24 Richards W.C.P. - 1991, 10 Riley R.H.G. – 2018 Ringer T.A. - 1992, 93, 94, 95, 96, 97, 98r, 99, 00, 01, 03, 04, 05, 06, 07, 09, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15r, 24 Roberts R.M. – 2009r Rose D.A. – 2008r, 12r, 14, 18r, 19r Rylands T.G. – 1991r, 95, 97, 98, 99, 00, 01, 02, 04, 06, 09, 17 Shouler R.S.F. - 2010r, 11, 14, 17r, 19, 22 Shouler S.D. – 2007r, 11 Southall A. – 2018r Spencer O.E.J. – 2019, 21 Stewart R. - 2006 Sykes P.D. – 2010r, 12, 14, 19, 22r, 23, 24 Tapster J.P. - 2019 Taylor B. - 2007r Taylor L.G. - 2024r Thomas S.A. – 1980, 81, 83, 84, 92, 96, 98, 99r, 09, 12r, 13, 14 Thompson J.M.A. – 1978, 85, 86, 87, 89r, 02 Tremlett C.N. - 1991, 92, 93, 96, 13r Tuck J.R. - 2023r Underwood J.C. - 1993, 96, 97, 98, 99, 00, 01, 02, 05, 06, 07, 09, 10, 12, 13, 14, 15r, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 24 Vary R.A.H. - 2001, 16 Walton M.W.T. - 1994r, 05 Warburton J.D. - 1983r, 85, 87, 88, 89, 90, 92, 93, 95, 96, 97, 98, 99, 03, 04, 06, 07, 08, 09, 11, 13, 15, 16, 17, 18, 20, 21, 24 Watson J.A. – 2007, 08, 10, 11, 12, 15, 16, 23r

Webster J.G.M. – 1984, 88, 89, 98, 99, 03r, 09r Welford E.R. – 2021r Wheeler P.R. – 2016 Williamson S.C. – 2003 Young D.G. – 2016 Young S.E. – 2010, 20

## **Other England Events**

### Lawrence Match

#### **Results Summary**

2000 England 1459.173 Scotland 1149.163 2001 match not held 2002 England 873.100 Scotland 872.97 2003 Scotland 1756.196 Ireland 1750.192 2004 Scotland 1770.211 England 1755.204 2005 England 1740.173 Scotland 1733.170 2006 Scotland 1730.155 England 1708.156 2007 England 1752.190 Scotland 1752.189 2008 Scotland 1748.192 England 1735.181 2009 Scotland 1750.195 England 1749.186 2010 Scotland 1704.154 England 1691.152 2011 Scotland 1755.208 England 1733.194 2012 Scotland 1747.206 England 1744.170 2013 Scotland 1750.200 England 1736.171 2014 Scotland 1724.167 England 1720.154 2015 Scotland 1707.144 England 1693.146 2016 England 1777.247 Scotland 1755.211 2017 England 1769.234 Scotland 1761.215 2018 England 1765.238 Scotland 1764.216 2019 England 889.098 Scotland 867.091 2020 Held at Bisley replacing the National Match due to coronavirus pandemic England 1789.269 Wales 1777.229 Scotland 1774.219 Ireland 1770.216 Channel Islands 1750.195 2021 Scotland 873.96 England 868.96 2022 England 1728.168 Scotland 1716.162 2023 England 1770.220 Scotland 1757.226 2024 Scotland 1774.228 England 1769.221

Wales 1745.172 England 1736.178

## Result for 2024

This match was held at Blair Atholl Ranges on 15 June 2024, during the Scottish Championships.

The Lawrence Trophy: Scotland

			500	600	Total
1. 3	Scotland		891.124	883.112	1774.228
2.	England				
	Captain:	Liversage M.			
	Adjutant:	Ashworth A.I.			
	Main Coach	Webster J.G.M	1.		
	Coaches:	Webster T.R.,	Pugh K.O.,	Barrington R.	F.
			500	600	Total
I	Farley K.E.		75.009	75.011	150.020
:	Shaw T.P.		75.011	75.009	150.020
-	Thomas S.A.		75.011	75.006	150.017
I	Danziger B.Z.		75.011	74.010	149.021
l	Hebblethwaite R.		74.011	74.010	148.021
	Vonchek C.R.		75.011	73.009	148.020
(	Crisp L.S.		74.012	74.007	148.019
	Mitchell C.J.		73.009	74.007	147.016
2	Xu A.R.		73.011	73.009	146.020
I	Holmes P.S.		75.012	71.007	146.019
I	Hill K.B.		74.010	70.007	144.017
(	Craig B.H.		72.006	71.005	143.011
	Totals		890.124	879.097	1769.221

## Captains and Adjutants

2000 2001	<b>Captain</b> Wicker, L.T. match not held	<b>Adjutant</b> Pugh, K.O.
2001	Comins S.J.	Stevens J.P.M.
2003	Saunders A.J.D.	Riley H.W.
2004	Weeden C.P.	Place M.R.
2005	Painting C.A.	Stevens P.R.C.
2006	Black M.J.M	Speirs A.C.
2007	Pattinson S.	Wicker L
2008	Horrocks A.R.	Taylor D.A.
2009	Aspin A.F.	Bromley P.B.
2010	Stevens P.R.C.	Gass D.J.
2011	Clarke T.P.	
2012	Fugeman M.R.	Webster T.R.
2013	Brooks C.M.	Webber D.N.
2014	Rylands T.G.	Liversage M.
2015	Tremlett C.N.	Barrington R.F.

#### Lawrence Match

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2022	Captain Winney R. Rosling R.P. Belither S. Warburton J.D. Match held at Ball N.J. Liversage M. Thomas S.A.	Liversage M. Pugh K.O. Craig B.N.
	5	0

#### Coaches

This section lists those who have coached in the Lawrence Match from 2000. Suffix m denotes main coach.

Allen D.H. - 2003, 05 Barrington R.F. – 2024 Barr M.E. - 2005 Bramwell H.P.C. - 2023 Brooks C.M. - 2013 Brown I.R.M. - 2000 Carmichael J.H. - 2004 Cheshire C.C.C. - 2003 Clarke G.L. - 2000 Clarke T.P. - 2009 Cleveland S.L. - 2003 Dickenson C.E.S. – 2012 Ensor M.J. – 2020 Fugeman M.R. – 2015 Gass D.J. – 2004. 09. 11. 15 Hatcher R.M. – 2022 Heales C.D. – 2020 Hinchliffe P.N. – 2003 Liversage M. - 2015 Lloyd D.C.W. - 2000 Mitchell C.J. – 2015

Nelson G.P. - 2007, 18, 19 Pattinson S.J. - 2007 Pugh K.O. - 2004, 08, 09, 10, 11, 14, 16, 18m, 19m, 24 Richards D.F.P. - 2003 Rylands T.G. - 2015, 17, 21, 22m Speirs A.C. - 2004 Stevens J.P.M. - 2015 Taylor D.A. - 2005, 09, 11, 12, 14, 16 Trembath G. – 2011 Tremlett C.N. - 2014, 15m, 20m Watson J.A. - 2004 Webster J.G.M. - 2011, 13, 17, 18, 19, 21, 22, 23. 24m Webster T.R. - 2007m, 08, 09, 10, 11, 13, 16, 17, 18, 19, 22, 23, 24 Weeden C.P. – 2004 White C.A. - 2010m Winney R. - 2005, 08, 12, 16m Young D.G. - 2000, 09

#### **Shooters and Reserves**

This section lists those who have shot or been reserve in the Lawrence Match from 2000. Suffix r denotes reserve.

Ali Y.M. – 2022 Amy T.J. – 1999, 00 Ashworth I.A. – 2016, 18, 19r Ball N.J. – 2003 Barnett G.C.D. – 2003 Bedding D.P. – 2003 Bird R.– 2016r, 22 Black M.J.M. – 1970, 72, 73, 81, 05, 06, 08, 09, 10, 12, 13, 14, 17r Booth R.J. – 1986, 93, 94, 10, 12, 14 Boston M.Z.J. – 2003 Bramwell G.P.C. – 2023 Brasier N.R.J. – 2000 Bromley P.B. – 1985, 86, 89, 90, 09 Bryan T. - 2018 Buckley M.E. - 2005 Bullen A.M. - 2017r Button M.C.J. – 2020 Cambray B.V. - 1991, 94, 96, 97, 13, 17r Cann G.A. - 2013, 17 Carmichael J.H. - 1995, 98, 99, 00, 02, 04 Chapman-Sheath P.J. - 2013, 15r Charlton E.G. – 2018 Clark D. – 2021 Clarke T.P. - 1986, 87, 88, 89, 90, 91, 93, 95, 98, 99, 00, 05, 08, 09, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 16, 17, 21, 22r, 23r Coleridge T. - 2003 Cook J.M.E. - 2016, 19, 21, 22 Cook H.A.(nee Pugsley) - 2023 Craig B.H. - 2024 Crisp L.S. - 2024 Crowson L.A.E. – 2015, 16, 17 Cubitt T.C. - 2023 Cuming C.H. - 2022, 23 Dallas J.A. – 1995, 97, 99, 02 Danziger B.Z. - 2023, 24 Dix R.A. – 2020 Drysdale T.M. - 2020 East S.J. - 2002, 06r, 16, 17, 19, 21 Eavrs R.L. - 2018 Ellis R.E. - 2023 Farley K.E. - 2024 Fleck K.A.2019r Fowler A.J. – 2019 Frost M.R. – 2013 Fugeman M.R. - 1985, 90, 91, 97, 12, 15 Furniss R.L. - 2020 Gass D.J. - 1993, 95, 96, 97, 98, 99, 00, 02, 04, 05, 06, 07, 08, 09, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 19, 22 Gilbert H.W.R. - 20114r, 15 Gladwin D.G.W. - 1976, 77, 78, 80, 81, 82, 83, 84, 85, 86, 88, 93, 94, 96, 02 Good A.P. - 2023 Green S.J. - 1998, 99, 00, 02, 04, 06, 07, 08, 10, 14 Hakim P.M. - 2003 Hebblethwaite R.A.V. – 2024 Hill K.B. - 1994, 15, 21, 24 Hince J.M. - 2022, 23 Hodge S.J. - 2020r Holmes J.M. - 1996, 99, 00, 07 Holmes P.S. - 2018, 19, 21, 22, 23, 24

Horrocks A.R. - 2013 Horrocks T. - 2013, 17, 19 Jones B. - 2010r, 11, 12 Keates J.H. – 2022 Kennedy L.E. – 2018 Laing-Baker T. - 2016 Larcombe G.A.E. – 2005r Liversage M. - 2010, 11, 12r, 14, 15, 16, 18, 19, 22 Lloyd D.C.W. - 1996, 97, 04, 06, 07, 09r Luckman D.C. - 2020 MacDonald I.D. - 2011, 13r, 14, 15 Mace L.K. – 2003 Mason R.S. - 1979, 80, 82, 83, 00 Matsumoto I.T. - 2007, 09 Miller J.T. - 2000 Mitchell C.J. - 2014, 15, 16, 17, 20, 24 Morley A.C. - 2015, 22, 23r Mott R.J.R. - 2009 Nelson G.P. - 2020r Patel P.M. - 2020 Place M.R. - 2006 Pugh K.O. - 1968, 69, 70, 71, 72, 73, 74, 76, 78, 79, 80, 81, 82, 83, 84, 85, 86, 87, 89, 00, 02, 04, 05, 06, 07, 09, 11, 12, 13, 17 Pugsley J. - 2019, 21 Raincock T.J.D. - 2020 Ramsey K.W.D. - 2020 Rewston M.R. – 2023r Riley R.H.G. - 2019, 21, 22 Ritchie J.S. – 2015r Robinson S.- 2016r Rylands T.G. - 2014, 15, 16, 18, 19 Schwarz M.J. - 2012, 16r Shaw R. – 2010r Shaw R.W. - 2010, 17 Shaw T.P. - 2023, 24 Silver M.W. - 2005r Skellett C.A. – 2018 Speirs A.C. - 1993, 94, 98, 99, 00, 02, 04, 05, 06,07 Spencer O.E.J. - 2017, 20 Stanwix N. - 1998, 99r, 02 Stevens J.P.M. - 2005, 10, 15 Stevens P.R.C. - 2002 Sykes C. - 2022 Sykes P.D. - 2020 Taylor D.A. - 1982, 85, 88, 91, 93, 95, 97, 98, 09, 10, 11, 15r

#### Lawrence Match

Thomas S.A. - 1979, 80, 82, 83, 84, 85, 07, 08, 12, 13, 14, 16, 17, 18, 21, 24 Thompson J.M.A. - 1979, 80, 82, 83, 84, 86, 87, 88, 91, 93, 95, 96, 02, 04, 06, 07, 08, 09, 10, 11, 12, 14, 16, 17, 18, 19, 21, 22r, 23 Trembath J.G. - 2007r, 09, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 18, 19 Vonchek C.R. - 2024 Waldern H.J. – 2021, 22r, 23 Warburton J.D. – 2020 Watson J.A. - 2004, 05, 07, 08 Webb R.A. - 2014r, 21 Webster J.G.M. - 2011, 12 Webster T.R. - 1993, 99, 04, 09, 11 Weeden C.P. - 1994, 95, 04 Welford E.R. - 2006, 07 Welsh S.T. - 2011 Westmoquette M. - 2006r, 08 White C.A. - 1997, 98, 99, 00, 02, 04, 05, 06, 07, 08, 09r Wicker L.T. - 2002, 05, 06, 08, 09r, 10 Wilde A.R. - 2008 Xu A.R. - 2024 Young D.G. - 2004, 05, 08, 09, 10, 16, 17 Young S.E. - 2005

## European Long Range Team Championship

This match was held at Bisley on 12th and 13th October 2024.

## Result for 2024

## 1. England

	Captain:	Brasier N.R.J.						
	Adjutant:	Abrahams A.C.						
	Main Coach:	Langley J.D.S. (Sat), Ensor M.J. (Sun)						
	Coaches:	Winney B.J., Ensor M.J. (Sat), Leech A.J. (Sun), Dowley S.A.J.					S.A.J.	
	Reserves:	Chidlow A.F., Dix R.A., Shouler R.S.F.						
			900	1000	900	1000	1000	Total
	Livingston S.		74.004	72.007	74.009	73.004	73.007	366.031
	Brown A.I.		73.005	74.008	73.007	70.003	73.003	363.026
	Taylor L.G.		75.008	73.005	74.005	67.003	72.006	361.027
	Asquith-Beard	H.G.	75.007	73.006	72.007	67.001	72.005	359.026
	Lothian J.W.E.		72.006	73.007	72.006	69.007	71.004	357.030
	Radkovskii A.R		72.007	74.005	74.008	68.005	68.006	356.031
	Hayton S.M.E.		75.010	72.004	74.005	62.002	73.009	356.030
	Drysdale T.M.		74.006	72.006	70.004	69.005	71.004	356.025
	Riley R.H.G.		71.004	70.005	72.005	66.000	70.007	349.021
	Craig B.N.		74.007	72.004	69.003	65.002	66.002	346.018
	Booth T.M.		71.003	63.002	68.002	66.004	68.003	336.014
	Langley J.D.S.		0.000	0.000	72.006	67.003	71.003	210.012
	Leech A.J.		72.006	68.005	0.000	0.000	0.000	140.011
	Totals		878.073	856.064	864.067	809.039	848.059	4255.302
2.	Scotland		880.086	847.052	879.071	811.040	837.049	4254.298
3.	Wales		871.072	831.058	858.067	817.054	826.042	4203.293
4.	Channel Island	S	870.066	832.050	839.063	802.036	845.051	4188.266
5.	Ireland		869.061	823.038	867.073	787.037	819.043	4165.252

## **Captains and Adjutants**

	Captain	Adjutant
1996		McGibbon E.M.
1998	Bloomfield J.P.S.	
2000	Hinchliffe P.N.	Lewis J.W.E.
2002	Barrington R.F.	Smith P.R.
2004	Fitzsimons T.J.	Mace L.K.
2006	Merry P.	Smith P.R.
2008	Painting C.A.	Fugeman M.R.
2010	Winney R.	Young D.G.
2012	Webster J.G.M.	Lewis J.W.E.
2014	Lewis J.W.E.	Jobling I.T.R.
2016	Messer J.H.	Ball N.J.
2018	Richards W.C.P.	De Vere D.A.
2022	Underwood J.C.	Penrose S.N.S.
2024	Brasier N.R.J.	Abrahams A.C.

#### European Long Range Team Championship Coaches

This section lists those who have ever coached in this match. Suffix m denotes main coach

- Aspin A.F. 2004 Belither S. – 2000 Cleveland S.L. – 1998, 00 Cload J. – 2008 Cole-Hawkins N. – 2014 Compton E.S. – 2022m Dickenson C.E.S. – 2008 Dowley S.A.J. – 2024 Ensor M.J. – 2002, 06, 08, 12, 18, 24m Harvey D.Q.M. – 1998, 04, 16 Heales C.D. – 2022 Hinchliffe P.N. – 2012m Kent P.G. – 1996 Langley J.D.S. – 2000, 04m, 16m, 24m Leech A.J. – 2022, 24
- Lewis J.W.E. 2014 Lowe D. – 2018 Luckman D.C. – 2002 Messer J.H. – 2004, 06m Nelson G.P. – 2016 Pilcher K.M. – 1996 Richards D.F.P. – 1996, 00m, 10m, 12, 16 Roberts R.M. – 1998, 02, 06 Tremlett C.N. – 2008m, 18m Underwood J.C. – 2012 Webster J.G.M. – 2014 Winney R. – 2006 Winney B.J. – 2018, 22, 24

#### Shooters

This section lists those who have ever shot or been reserve in this match. Suffix r denotes reserve.

Ali S.Y.M. - 2022 Armstrong D.R. - 1998, 08, 12 Asquith-Beard H.G. - 2022. 24 Ashworth I.A. - 2016 Ball N.J. - 2000, 12, 18 Barr M.E. - 1998 Bedwell T.L. - 2004 Belither S. - 1996 Belk C.T.S. - 2010 Bellringer J.E.M. – 1996 Binder S-J. - 2004 Blake D.J. – 2010. 16 Booth T.M. – 2024 Boston M.Z.J. - 2002 Brasier N.R.J. - 2006 Brister M.J. - 1998 Brown A.I. – 2012, 14, 22, 24 Bullock J.A. - 2006 Cane J.A. - 2000, 02 Cane S.J. - 2000. 02 Carmichael J.H. - 1996 Chapman-Sheath P.J. - 2014, 16, 22 Cheshire C.C.C. - 1996 Cheslyn-Curtis S. - 2014 Chidlow A.F. - 2024r Childs G.C. - 2010, 16

Clarke A.J. - 2014 Cload J. - 1998. 00. 18 Coleman D.G.M. - 2014 Craig B.N. - 2024 Davies N.T. - 2008 Daw A.P.W. - 2016 Day H.A. - 2010 de Vere D.A. - 2012. 14 Dickenson C.E.S. - 2016 Drysdale T.M. - 2012, 18, 24 East S.J. – 2012, 16 Feast E.W.V. - 2018, 22 Fenn D.L. - 2002 Fowler A.J. – 2022 Gent A.M. - 2002 Griggs P.D. - 2006, 10 Haley C.D. - 1998, 00, 04 Hayton S.M.E. - 2024 Heales C.D. - 2004, 16 Hill K.B. - 2002 Hince J.M. - 2018r Hinde J.R.J. - 2010 Hodge S.J. - 2022 Holden P.J.R. - 2000. 06 Holmes P.S. - 2022 Hull J.B. - 2010

Jackman J.F. - 1996 Jeal G.R. - 2018 Jones A.R.H. - 2000, 04 Kent J.C.T. – 2002 Kent P.G. - 2014 Laing-Baker T. - 2016 Langley J.D.S. - 2018 Larter-Whicher S. - 2016r Leech A.J. - 2018r, 24 Lewis J.W.E. - 1996, 12 Liversage M. – 2018, 22 Livingston S. – 2024 Lothian J.W.E. - 2024 Luckman D.C. - 1996 Luckman S.V. (née Kent) - 2002, 04 Mace L.K. - 2010 Messer J.H. - 1996. 08. 18 Miller J.T. - 2006 Moxon N.P. - 1996 Nuttall E.J. - 2012, 14, 16 Osmond S.J.V. - 1998 Palmer G.D. - 2002, 04 Patel P.M. - 2000, 18 Pilgrim A.J. – 1998, 00, 10 Postins S.C. - 2008 Pugh K.O. – 2008 Pugsley H.A. - 2014 Pugsley J. - 1996, 14 Purdy M.J. – 2012, 16, 18 Radkovskii A.R. - 2024 Raincock T.J.D. – 2004, 12 Ramsey K.W.D. - 2012r Richards D.F.P. - 2008 Riley R.H.G. - 2024 Rix R.A. – 2024r Roberts R.M. - 2022 Robinson S. - 2008 Roots S. - 1998 Rose D.A. - 2002, 04, 08, 18 Rowland W.J. - 2008 Shaw M.H. - 2006 Shouler R.S.F. - 2006. 08. 24r Shouler S.D. - 2008r, 10, 14, 16 Smallwood S.M. – 1998 Smith T.O'H. - 2006 Speirs A.C. - 1998, 00, 04 Spencer T.F. - 2002 Stangroom N.D. - 2004 Stevens J.P.M. – 1998, 00, 04 Stewart R. - 2002, 06

Sykes P.D. - 2018 Taylor L.G. – 2022, 24 Thomas S.A. - 2006 Tuck J.R. – 2014 Underwood J.C. - 1996 Vary R.A.H. - 2008 Veltman M.W.M. (now Veltman-Grisenthwaite), 96 Watson J.A. – 2008, 12 Weeden C.P. - 2000, 10 Whitby R.W.S. - 1998 Whitby S.J. - 2018r Willingale K.M. – 2008r Wilson A. - 2010 Young B.A. - 2006 Young D.G. – 2006, 22 Young S.E. - 2012
# **Under 25 Home Countries Invitation Match**

This match was held on Wednesday 24th July at Bisley.

			Result for	r 2024		
1.	. Nine NRA gold medals: England					
	Captain:	Bramwell H	I.P.C.			
	Coach:	Waldern H	.J			
			300	500	600	Total
	Farley K.E.		35.06	35.06	35.07	105.19
	Bramwell G	.P.C.	35.05	35.04	35.07	105.16
	Keel M.J.		34.05	35.07	35.04	104.16
	Vonchek C.	R.	33.03	35.04	35.05	103.12
	Mace R.J.		34.03	34.02	35.03	103.08
	Cubitt T.C.		33.04	34.04	35.05	102.13
			204.26	208.27	210.31	622.84
	Ireland D	NS				
	Scotland D	NS				
	Wales D	NS				

# **Commonwealth Games**

## Managers

This section lists managers of the England Commonwealth Games teams.

Bloomfield J.P.S. – 1998, 02, 06 Harrison E.P.J. – 1986, 90 Langley J.D.S. – 2006, 10, 14, 18 Tucker A.St.G. – 1994

## Shooters

This section lists those who have shot in the Commonwealth Games for England. The notes in parenthesis after a name indicate medals won.

Barnett G.C.D. – 1994 (B, S team), 02 (B team), 06 (G team) Belither S. – 1990 (G team) Bloomfield J.P.S. – 1982 (S team), 86 (B) Cade R.J. – 1966 Crawshaw N.C. – 1986 Gilson B.I.J. – 1978 Little F.G. – 1966 Luckman A.J. – 1998 (B) Luckman D.C. – 2014 (G, G team), 18 (G, G team) Messer J.H. – 2002 (B team) Patel P.M. – 2006 (S, G team), 10 (G), 14 (B, G team), 18 (B. G team) Pilcher K.M. – 1974 Ringer T.A. – 1994 (S team), 98 Rosling R.P. – 1982 (S team) Spaight J.S. – 1974 (B), 78 (S) Tucker A.St.G. – 1990 (S, G team) Underwood J.C. – 2010

# **England Touring Teams**

England touring teams have been sent to Canada (C), Guyana (GUY), Kenya (K), Republic of South Africa (RSA), United States of America (USA)

#### Captains

Barnes A.P. - 2023 (K+RSA)Underwood J.C. - 2024(USA)Chard K.E. - 1999(C)Watson J.A. - 2013(RSA)Horrocks A.R. - 2004(RSA)Webster J.G.M. - 2008(USA)Rylands T.G. - 2009(RSA), 19(C), 24(USA)Winney R. - 2017 (GUY)Tucker A.St.G. - 1995(C)2024(USA)2024(USA)Due to illness T. Rylands was unable to travel and J. Underwood acted as<br/>Captain for the tour.

#### **Vice-Captains**

Button M.C.J. – 2024(USA) Chown A. – 1995(C) Chapman-Sheath P.J. – 2023(K+RSA) Day H.A. – 2017(GUY) Jaques P. – 1999(C) Lewis J.W.E. – 2013(RSA) Lothian A.W.C. – 2009(RSA), 2019(C) Taylor D.A. – 2004(RSA) Underwood J.C. – 2024(USA) Watson J.A. – 2008(USA)

#### Adjutants

Ashworth A.I. – 2024(USA) Cannings E.J. – 2013(RSA) Dyson D.C. – 2004(RSA) Liversage M. – 2017(GUY), 23(K+RSA) Lowe D. – 2009(RSA) Penrose S.N.S. – 2019(C) Ritchie J.S. – 2024(USA) Smith P.R. – 1995(C), 99(C) Underwood J.C. – 2008(USA)

## Coaches

Allen D.H. – 1995(C), 04(RSA) Barnett G.C.D. – 2013(RSA) Barr M.E. - 1995(C), 99(C) Bramwell H.P.C. – 2023(K+RSA) Chard K.E. - 1995(C)m Cload J. – 2024(USA) Ensor M.J. - 2009(RSA) Harvey D.Q.M. - 2004(RSA) Heales C.D. – 2017(GUY) Hinchliffe P.N. – 1995(C), 08m(USA) Kent P.G. – 2013(RSA) Langley J.D.S. – 2008(USA) Leech A.J. – 2023(K+RSA) Lothian A.W.C. – 2019(C) Lowe D. - 2023(K+RSA) Nelson G.P. – 2023(K+RSA)

Patel P.M. - 2013(RSA) Penrose S.N.S. - 2019(C) Pepera-Hibbert J.E.K. – 2024(USA) Raincock T.J.D. - 2013(RSA) Richards D.F.P. – 2009(RSA) Richards W.C.P. – 2009(RSA) Riley R.H.G. – 2023(K+RSA) Roberts R.M. – 2024(USA) Rylands T.G. – 2019(C) Smith P.R. – 1999(C) Tremlett C.N. – 2008(USA), 09m(RSA) Tucker A.St.G. - 1999(C) Underwood J.C. – 2013(RSA), 19m(C) Watson J.A. – 2013(RSA) Webb R.A. – 2023(K+RSA) Winney B.J. – 2017(GUY)

## England Touring Teams

#### Shooters

Armstrong D.R. – 2008(USA) Allum J.R. - 2019 Baker R.B.C. – 1995(C), 04(RSA) Ball N.J. – 2004(RSA), 19(C), 23(K+RSA) Barnes A.P. - 2017(GUY), 19(C) Barnett G.C.D. - 2013(RSA) Baylis G.C. – 1995(C) Belk C.T.S. – 2013(RSA) Booth R.J. – 1995(C) Boston M.Z.J. – 2009(RSA) Bramwell H.P.C. – 2019(C), 23(K+RSA) Brewer-Marchant S.F. – 2019(C) Brown A.I. – 2013(RSA), 23(K+RSA), 24(USA) Bryan T.J. – 2017(GUY), 19(C) Burch R.D.C. – 1999(C) Button M.C.J. – 1995r(C), 24(USA) Cambray B.V. - 1999(C) Cann G.A. - 1999(C), 04(RSA) Carpenter V.C. – 1995(C) Chapman-Sheath P.J. – 2017(GUY) Charlton E.G. (ne Joseph), 13(RSA) Cheslyn-Curtis S. – 2017(GUY) Childs G.C. – 1999(C) Chown A. – 1995(C) Coffin R.J. - 1999(C) Coleridge T. – 2004(RSA) Compton E.S. – 2023(K+RSA) Crabtree C. – 2023(K+RSA) Crispin D.C. – 1995r(C), 99(C) Dash S.F.D. - 2013(RSA) Daw A.P.W. - 2013(RSA), 17(GUY), 23(K+RSA) Day H.A. - 2017(GUY) de Vere D.A. - 2013(RSA) Dix R.A. – 2023(K+RSA) Drysdale T.M. - 2013(RSA) Dyson D.C. – 2008(USA), 09(RSA) Edwards R.K. – 2024(USA) Farley K.E. – 2024(USA) Feast E.W.V. - 2024(USA) Fitch A.K. – 1999(C) Fitzsimons T.J. – 2004(RSA) Fleck K.A. – 2019(C) Ford J.A.F. – 2023(K+RSA) Foster H.A. – 2008(USA), 09(RSA) Foulston D. - 2004(RSA) Furness R.L. – 2023(K+RSA) Gass D.J. - 2004(RSA)

Glanville S.D.J. - 2023(K+RSA) Glasscock G. – 1995(C) Green S.J. – 1995r(C) Haley C.D. – 2004(RSA) Harrigan B.G. – 1995(C) Hayton S.M.E. – 2024(USA) Heales C.D. – 1995(C) Hince J.M. – 2019(C) Hinde J.R.J. – 2024(USA) Holden P.J.R. - 2004(RSA), 24(USA) Holmes P.S. – 2023(K+RSA) Hoolahan E.L. - 2013(RSA), 19(C) Johnson P.J. – 1995(C), 99(C) Keates J.H. - 2019(C) Kennedy L.E. – 2017(GUY) Kent J.C.T. – 2004r(RSA) Kent P.G. - 2013(RSA) Leech A.J. - 2017(GUY), 23(K+RSA) Lewis J.W.E. – 2023(K+RSA) Liversage M. – 2017(GUY) Lothian J.W.E. - 2009(RSA) Lowe.D. - 2023(K+RSA) Luckman D.C. - 2008(USA), 09(RSA) Luckman S.V. (née Kent) – 2004(RSA), 08(USA) Mace L.K. – 2004r(RSA) Messer J.H. - 2008(USA), 09(RSA) Mitchell C.J. - 2019(C) Morley A.C. – 2017(GUY) Nelson G.P. – 2023(K+RSA) Nuthall D.E. - 2019(C) Nuttall E.J. – 2008(USA) O'Brien C.S. – 1995(C) O'Brien S.P. – 2009(RSA) Patel P.M. – 2013(RSA) Paul C.H. - 1999(C) Penn N.W. – 2004(RSA) Penrose S.N.S. – 2008(USA), 09(RSA), 19(C) Pepera-Hibbert J. – 2023(K+RSA) – 2023(K+RSA) Pollock H.H.G. – 2004(RSA) Postle J.R.W. - 2019(C) Pugsley J. – 2008(USA) Purdy M.J. – 2013(RSA) Raincock T.J.D. - 1995(C), 13(RSA) Ramsey K.W.D. - 2008(USA) Reid M.G. - 1999(C) Ringer T.A. – 2013(RSA), 23(K+RSA)

## England Touring Teams

Riley R.H.G. - 2023(K+RSA) Rose D.A. – 2009(RSA), 19(C), 24(USA) Rylands T.G. – 2008(USA), 23(K+RSA) Sadler A. - 2024(USA) Shaw T.P. - 2023(K+RSA) Smallwood S.M. – 1995(C) Smith T. – 2019(C), 23(K+RSA) Speirs A.C. – 2004(RSA) Stangroom N.D. – 2017(GUY) Staples C.A. – 2017(GUY) Steele P.J. - 1999(C) Stevens J.P.M. – 1995r(C), 04(RSA) Stuart-Bamford E. – 1999(C) Sykes C. - 2024(USA) Sykes P.D. – 2009(RSA), 23(K+RSA) Taylor L.G. – 2019(C), 23(K+RSA) Thomas S.A. - 2004(RSA) Tuck J.R. – 2019(C)

Underwood J.C. - 2009(RSA), 13(RSA), 24(USA) van Koetsveld A.G.H. – 1995r(C) Walton M.W.T. – 1995(C) Watson J.A. - 1995(C), 99(C), 09(RSA) Webb R.A. – 2023(K+RSA) Webster J.G.M. – 2009(RSA) Welford E.R. - 2008(USA), 24(USA) Wheeler P.R. – 2019(C) Whicher M.G. - 2019(C) White C.A. - 1995r(C Wilde A.R. - 2008(USA), 09(RSA) Williams A.A. – 2008(USA), 09(RSA), 13(RSA) Winney R. - 2004(RSA) Wood M.J. - 1999(C) Young B.A. – 2013(RSA) Young S.E. - 2009(RSA) Xu A.R. – 2024(USA)

# England Team to USA 2024

#### The America Match

The America Match: USA

		300	600	900 1000	Total
1.	USA	1188.073	1195.070	1170.040 1166.044	4719.227
2.	England				
	Captain:	Ritchie J.S.			
	Adjutant:	Ashworth A.I.			
	Main Coach:	Roberts R.M.			
	Coaches:	Cload J.Pepera-Hibbe	rt J.E.K.		
	Reserves:	Brown A.I., Sadler A.			
		300	600	900 1000	Total
	Underwood J.C	. 150.013	149.007	149.008 147.006	595.034
	Hayton S.M.E.	149.011	150.011	150.006 146.0060	395.034
	Rose D.A.	149.007	149.010	148.004 145.004	391.025
	Hinde J.R.J.	150.007	149.004	142.003 148.008	389.022
	Button M.C.J.	150.012	150.005	140.004 148.006	588.027
	Farley K.E.	150.010	150.008	142.002 146.007	588.027
	Holden P.J.R.	149.011	149.006	141.005 148.007	587.029
	Welford E.R.	150.011	147.005	141.003 146.002	584.021
	Totals	1197.082	1193.056	1153.0351174.046	4717.219
3.	Scotland	1194.070	1180.050	1128.0231151.035	4653.178

# English Twenty Club Matches Matches v RAFTRC, Scotland, Wales and Ireland

These matches were held at Bisley on Saturday 13 and Sunday 14 May. The Saturday match was under National conditions. The Sunday match was under Mackinnon conditions.

In the Short Range Match a National Match course of fire was followed as normal but Ireland and Wales only had teams of 15, so we pre-nominated a 15 for the match as did the RAF and Scotland. There were some tricky conditions and certainly some of the team members still seemed to be finding their form for the season, but we came out with a win by a pretty respectable margin.

	Short Range Match Res	sult for 20	)24	
Captain:	Rylands T.G.			
Adjutant:	Armstrong D.R.			
Main Coach:	Langley J.D.S			
Coaches:	Lowe D., Pepera-Hibbert	J., Richai	rds W.C.P	-,
	Stewart R., Winney B.J.			
	300	500	600	Total
<b>D</b> / <b>D D</b> /	05 007	05 007	05 007	105 001

	300	300	000	TOLAT
Patel P.M.	35.007	35.007	35.007	105.021
Luckman D.C.	35.005	35.006	35.007	105.018
Ringer T.A.	35.006	35.005	35.007	105.018
Ball N.J.	35.006	35.004	35.006	105.016
Taylor L.G.	35.003	35.006	35.006	105.015
Vonchek C.R.	35.005	35.006	35.004	105.015
Ashworth A.I.	35.003	34.005	35.006	105.015
Beaton-Jaramillo M.D.	35.003	35.005	35.005	105.013
Hayton S.M.E.	35.003	35.005	35.005	105.013
Blythe M.P.	35.004	34.005	35.007	104.016
Crisp L.S.	35.006	35.005	34.003	104.014
Xu.A.R.	34.004	35.005	34.005	103.014
Mawson C.	35.006	34.003	34.005	103.014
Murrin N.	35.003	33.003	35.005	103.011
Grindon H.D.	34.003	34.004	34.005	102.012
Brown A.I.	34.005	33.002	35.004	102.011
Grand Total	693.090	690.092	696.106	2079.288
Pre-Nominated Grand				
Total	503.049	511.048	511.051	1525.148

1525.148 1504.159 1494.134 1487.121

1. England

2. Scotland

4. RAFTRC

3. Ireland

6. Wales

1453.115

# Long Range Match Result for 2024

English Twenty Club 1. Bellringer J.E.M. Captain: Adjutant: Cleveland S.L. Main Coach: Tremlett C.N. Coaches:

Lowe D., Patel P.M., Luckman D.C.

		900	1000	Total
	Millar M.R.M.	49.006	50.007	99.013
	Rose D.A.	49.005	50.007	99.012
	Postle J.R.W.	49.004	50.007	99.011
	Raincock T.J.D.	48.005	50.006	98.011
	Furniss R.L.	49.007	49.002	98.009
	Hayton S.M.E.	49.003	49.005	98.008
	Cleveland S.L.	47.006	49.005	96.011
	Ringer T.A.	48.005	48.006	96.011
	Brown A.I.	49.007	47.003	96.010
	Blythe M.P.	49.004	47.004	96.008
	Taylor L.G.	49.004	46.005	95.009
	Crisp L.S.	47.003	48.002	95.005
	Totals	582.059	583.059	1165.118
2.	Ireland			1133.082
3.	Wales			1126.088
4.	Scotland			1121.089
5.	RAFTRC			1087.062

# Match v UK Armed Forces and Home Countries

This match was shot at Bisley on Friday 26th July.

		Result for 2	2024		
		300	500	600	Total
1. 2.	The Northamptonshire UKAF England	Cup 582.71	587.78	588.72	1757.221
	Captain: Adjutant: Main Coach	Nelson G.F Liversage N			
	Coaches: Reserves	Lowe D. Rose D.A., Gray C.S.P			R.A.
		300	500	600	Total
	Welford E.R.	49.05	50.08	50.08	149.021
	Radkovskii A.R.	50.06	49.06	49.06	148.018
	Farley K.E.	50.03	50.05	48.04	148.012
	Fitzsimmons R.B.	48.06	50.07	49.08	147.021
	Weinberger A.A.	49.06	50.05	48.06	147.017
	Burch J.R.L.	49.05	49.04	49.06	147.015
	Warren R.R.	50.05	50.04	47.05	147.014
	Craig B.N.	48.04	50.03	49.06	147.013
	Keen T.S.	48.02	50.07	48.05	146.014
	Sales Scott N.J.	49.07	50.08	46.05	145.020
	Blythe M.P.	49.06	46.05	49.08	144.019
	Sykes C.	49.04	47.02	45.02	141.008
	Total	588.59	591.64	577.69	1756.192
3.	Scotland	564.48	580.56	574.57	1718.161

# Match v Welsh XX Club

This match was held at Bisley on 24 and 25 August 2024 concurrent with the Welsh Open Championships. Since not all 8 selected shooters completed the Grand Aggregate, totals for the top 6 were used.

# Result for 2024

	Q1 + Q2	Q3	Total
1. English XX Club			
Captain: Morris D.			
Maris S.			389.035
Clifford-Evans C.			388.039
Wilde A.			388.037
Haley L.			384.033
Cole Hawkins N.			379.034
Goad C.			372.033
Nathan M			372.030
Curd J.			283.025
			2300.211
2. Welsh XX Club			2263.189

# **GB Matches**

# Kolapore

# **Results Summary**

- 2000 Great Britain 1182.146, Canada 1176.147, South Africa 1175.153, Australia 1170.125, Jersey 1169.132, Kenya 1158.130, Guernsey 1155.120, USA 1152.126, West Indies 1130.107, Germany 1125.092, Continental Palma Council 1104.069.
- 2001 Great Britain 1189.160, Jersey 1175.152, Canada 1169.137, Guernsey 1142.108.
- 2002 Great Britain 1197.175, Canada 1183.160, Jersey 1182.148, USA 1181.155, Guernsey 1178.147, Antipodean team 1166.135, Germany 1150.119.
- 2003 Great Britain 1195.180, Jersey, 1183.154, Australia 1181.150, South Africa 1181.134, Canada 1180.149, USA 1178.165, Guernsey 1175.150, New Zealand 1175.127, Kenya 1170.121, USA Young Eagles 1166.125, West Indies 1152.115
- 2004 Great Britain 1188.158, Jersey, 1161.127, Kenya 1145.105, Canada 1144.143, Guernsey 1143.109
- 2005 Great Britain 1189.180, Jersey 1184.152, Canada 1165.134, Guernsey 1158.126, Kenya 1154.118, Germany 1146.108
- 2006 Great Britain 1191.170, Canada 1179.143, Guernsey 1171.136, Jersey 1170.133, Kenya 1148.125, Germany 1146.103
- 2007 Great Britain 1190.165, Guernsey 1161.118, Canada 1158.139, Jersey 1157.126
- 2008 Great Britain 1179.155, Canada 1172.132, Jersey 1172.114, Guernsey 1156.119, Germany 1154.100, Kenya 1142.114
- 2009 Great Britain 1193.169, Guernsey 1183.143, Jersey 1180.148, Canada 1171.141, Kenya 1164.118
- 2010 Great Britain 1196.195, Jersey 1191.175, Australia 1190.171, Guernsey 1181.145, Canada 1166.135, Germany 1164.129, Kenya 1154.113
- 2011 Great Britain 1188.176, Jersey 1181.146, Canada 1174.124, Kenya 1153.116, Guernsey 1152.123, Germany 1137.99
- 2012 Great Britain 1199.201\*, Jersey 1187.161, Guernsey 1183.168, Canada 1160.149
- 2013 Great Britain 1191.163, Australia 1175.145, Guernsey 1171.178, Canada 1167.132 Jersey 1164.130
- 2014 Great Britain 1192.177, Jersey 1175.146, Australia 1171.138, Guernsey 1169.139, Canada 1163.129, BDMP Germany 1139.160, Kenya 1134.112
- \* Record score on NRA targets

# From 2015 this match was shot on ICFRA targets.

- 2015 Great Britain 1172.131, Jersey 1163.115, Australia 1157.107, Guernsey 1155.093, Canada 1149.087,
- 2016 Great Britain 1196.151\*, Australia 1187.122, Guernsey 1184.120, Jersey 1182.116, Canada 1169.115, BDMP Germany 1168.99
- 2017 Great Britain 1174.121, Jersey 1157.92, Australia 1156.94, Guernsey 1148.85, Canada 1146.83, Kenya 1128.70, BDMP Germany 1092.60

- 2018 Great Britain 1179.134, Canada 1178.98, Australia 1165.107, Guernsey 1150.088, Kenya 1142.70, Jersey 1137.79, BDMP Germany 1122.57
- 2019 Great Britain 1189.148, Australia 1188.132, Canada 1179.130, USA 1173.130, Guernsey 1170.108, New Zealand 1167.119, Jersey 1165.107, Kenya 1162.107, Germany 1146.85
- 2020 No competition due to Covid pandemic
- 2021 Great Britain 1191.141, Guernsey 1160.102, Jersey 1146.86
- 2022 Great Britain 1179.148, Australia 1176.104, Canada 1174.97, Guernsey 1166.122, Jersey 1162.90, Kenya 1146.82, Germany 1126.75
- 2023 Great Britain 1185.144, Australia 1174.115, Jersey 1163.97, Guernsey 1155.100, Canada 1144.88, Kenya 1141.105, BDMP Germany 1125.69
- 2024 Great Britain 1182.138, Australia 1173.100, Guernsey 1162.101, Canada 1156.108, Jersey 1156.93
- \* Record score on ICFRA targets

# Result for 2024

1. The Challenge	Cups: Great Britain
Captain:	Richards W.C.P.
Adjutant:	Nelson G.P.
Main Coach:	Langley J.D.S.
Coaches:	Lowe D., Ensor M.J.
Reserves:	Patel P.M., Stewart R.

	300	500	600	Total
Mitchell C.J.	50.08	50.06	50.06	150.020
Luckman D.C.	50.07	50.09	49.06	149.022
Millar M.R.M.	50.08	50.06	49.04	149.018
Hince J.M.	50.06	50.07	48.03	148.016
Underwood J.C.	49.07	50.06	48.05	147.018
Furniss R.L.	50.05	50.08	47.02	147.015
Evans C.A.	48.05	50.07	48.03	146.015
Raincock T.J.D	50.07	50.06	46.01	146.014
Totals	397.53	400.55	385.30	1182.138
2. Australia	390.27	395.31	388.42	1173.100
3. Guernsey	387.35	393.42	382.24	1162.101
4. Canada	386.41	393.41	377.26	1156.108
5. Jersey	389.34	387.31	380.28	1156.093

# **Captains and Adjutants**

	Captain	Adjutant
2000	Belither S.	Aspin A.F.
2001	Barr M.E.	Painting C.A.
2002	Aspin A.F.	Wood M.J.
2003	Hinchliffe P.N.	Warburton J.D.
2004	Townsend M.K.	Weeden C.P.
2005	Pugh K.O.	Kent P.G.
2006	Webster J.G.M.	Lewis J.W.E.
2007	Hossack J.D.I.	Logan N.B.S
2008	Thomas S.A.	Alexander G.K.
2009	Pizer R.	Rylands T.G.
2010	Thompson J.M.A.	Boston M.Z.J.
2011	Messer J.H.	Harding S.
2012	Tremlett C.N.	Lowe D.
2013	Warburton J.D.	Bromley P.B.
2014	Rosling R.P.	Bloomfield J.P.S.
2015	Bromley P.B.	Warburton J.D.
2016	Roberts R.M.	Ball N.J.
2017	Peden L.M.	Penrose S.N.S.
2018	Brooks C.M.	Rose D.A.
2019	Raincock T.J.D.	Ensor M.J.
2020	No C	Competition

# Captain

2021	Wartson J.A.
2022	Richards D.F.P.
2023	Rylands T.G.
2024	Richards W.C.P.

# Adjutant

Tremlett C.N. Lothian A.W.C. Cheek L.M.D. Nelson G.P.

## Coaches

This section lists those who have coached for Great Britain in the Kolapore from 2000. Suffix m denotes main coach.

#### English

Collings, J.S. - 1999, 03, 05 Ensor, M.J. - 2008, 09, 12, 13, 15, 16, 17, 18, 21, 22, 23, 24 Hinchliffe, P.N. - 1991, 93, 95, 97, 98, 00m, 04m, 06m, 07m Langley, J.D.S. - 2004, 06, 07, 10, 11, 12m, 13, 15, 17, 18, 19, 21m, 22, 23m, 24m Lowe D. - 2024 Messer, J.H. - 2001, 02, 08, 14m Richards, D.F.P. - 2002 Richards, W.C.P. – 1994, 96, 97m, 99m, 00, 01, 02m, 03m, 04m, 10, 11, 12, 13m, 14, 15m, 16. 17m, 18m, 19, 21, 22m, 23 Tremlett, C.N. – 1998, 99, 03, 04, 05m, 19m

#### Irish

Calvert, D.P. – 2005 Townsend, M.K. – 1991, 95, 00, 01m, 06, 07, 08m, 09m, 10m, 11m, 14, 16m

#### Scottish

Charlton, M.J.J. - 2009

#### **Shooters and Reserves**

This section lists those who have shot or been reserve for Great Britain in the Kolapore from 2000. Suffix r denotes Reserve.

## English

Armstrong, D.R.- 2009, 16, 17, 23 Ball N.J. - 2001, 04, 05, 07, 08, 09, 10, 11, 15r, 21. 22r Barnett G.C.D. - 1993, 94, 96, 97, 02, 03, 04, 07, 08, 09, 10, 11, 12, 13, 15, 16, 17, 19, 21, 22, 23 Belither S. - 1982, 83, 84, 85, 86, 87, 88, 89, 90, 91, 92, 94, 97, 98, 01, 03r, 04 Bellringer J.E.M. – 1983, 85, 86, 87, 90, 91, 93, 96, 2002 Brasier N.R.J - 2002 Broad W.J.D. - 2023 Button – 2022 Cload J. - 2004, 05r, 10, 12r Coleman D.G.M. - 1986, 87, 91, 92, 98, 99, 2000, 01, 02, 04, 06 Collings J.S. - 1995, 00r Drysdale T.M. - 2015, 18, 19r Dyson D.C. - 2007r Furniss R.L. – 2022. 24 Haley C.D. - 2018r Hince J.M. - 2023r, 24 Holden P.J.R. - 2002r Kent P.G. - 1979, 83, 84, 85, 89, 91, 97, 99, 00, 02r, 07, 09, 10, 11, 12\*, 13r, 14 Langley J.D.S. - 2008r, 16r Luckman A.J. – 1994, 97, 98, 99, 01, 02, 03, 04r, 05, 06, 07

Luckman D.C. - 1998, 99, 03, 04, 05, 06, 07, 08, 09, 10, 11, 12, 13, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 21, 22, 23, 24 Messer J.H. – 2016r, 17r Millar M.R.M. - 2023r, 24 Mitchell C.J. - 2021, 22, 24 Morton C.J. - 2005 Patel P.M. - 2001, 03, 05, 06, 07, 08, 09r, 11, 12, 13, 15, 17, 18, 19, 21, 22, 23, 24r Pilgrim A.J. – 2001r Pugsley J. - 1997, 2000 Raincock T.J.D. - 2006, 07, 08, 13, 14, 15r, 16, 17,24 Ramsey K.W.D. - 2018, 19r Ringer T.A. - 1993, 95, 96, 97, 00, 01, 03, 06r, 09. 10r. 11. 14 Rose D.A. - 2016 Rylands T.G. - 2000, 02, 03, 04, 05r, 06 Shouler R.S.F - 2014r. 21. 23 Stewart R. - 2005. 24r Sykes P.D. – 2010r, 18, 19 Thomas S.A. - 1980, 81, 82, 83, 89, 91, 92, 93, 96, 2012, 13, 14r Tremlett C.N. - 2000r Underwood J.C. - 1998, 99, 00, 01 03r, 05, 06, 07, 09, 10, 16, 18, 19, 21r, 23, 24 Warburton J.D. - 1985, 86(R), 89, 90, 91, 92, 93, 96, 97, 98, 99, 2002, 06r, 11r, 14 Webster J.G.M. - 2000 Wilde A.R. – 2008, 09

## Irish

Alexander J.W. – 2019 Calvert D.P. – 1988, 89, 90, 91, 92, 93, 94, 95, 96, 97, 98, 99, 00, 01, 06, 08, 14, 15, 16 Charlton P.A.E. – 2008r McLeod A.R. – 2014 McQuillan R.J. – 2007r Millar M.L. – 1995, 01r

## Scottish

Rankin J.M. – 2013 Logan N.B.S. – 2017r, 18r Shaw I.T.G. – 2002, 12, 17 Walker A.N.R. – 2017, 18, 19

#### Welsh

Dodds T.H.D. – 2021, 22 Evans C.A. – 2021r, 22, 23, 24 Jeens, E.R.T. – 2011r, 12, 14 Jeens R.C.T. – 2015 Morris, G.E. – 2011, 12r, 13, 15, 16 Watson, C.J. – 2011, 15, 17, 18, 19, 21, 22

# Palma Match

# **Results Summary**

All results from 1876-2024 are available in *The History and Records of the Palma Match* by Colin C.C. Cheshire. and Philip Harrison

## Location

1992	Raton, NM,	Great Britain 7082.343, Canada 7023.275, New Zealand 6998.257,
1002	USA	Australia 6992.275, USA 6969.267,
	004	East and Central Africa 6873.208, Continental Europe 6646.186
1995	Trentham,	Great Britain 13849.517, USA 13750.498, New Zealand 13695.420,
1000	NZ (first 2-	Australia 13688.448, South Africa 13611.398, Canada 13401.385,
	day match)	Channel Islands 12957.289, Germany 12926.275
1999	,	South Africa 14081.599, Great Britain 14073.598,
	SA SA	New Zealand 14044.568, Australia 14019.601, USA 13958.558,
		Canada 13746.483, Namibia 13665.368, Kenya 13650.408,
		Channel Islands 13567.393, Germany 13378.322,
		Zimbabwe 13352.343, Continental Palma Council 13004.250
2003	Bisley, GB	Great Britain 14121.646, USA 14056.584, South Africa 14013.563,
		Canada 13959.550, Australia 13911.531, Channel Islands
		13819.457, Germany 13681.387, Kenya 13368.298,
		West Indies 13331.328, Continental Palma Council 13222.267
2007	Connaught,	Great Britain 14200.766, South Africa 14175.709, Australia
	Canada	14172.728, USA 14115.724, Canada 14055.630, New Zealand
		14030.614, Channel Islands 13835.556, Germany 13691.417,
0011	Delment	Kenya 13591.417, West Indies 13468.355
2011	Belmont, Australia	Great Britain 7027.651, South Africa 6992.651, USA 6980.655, Australia 6966.602, Canada 6910.564, New Zealand 6892.533
2015	Camp Perry,	Great Britain 7106.825, USA 7034.724, South Africa 7010.705,
2015	USA	Australia 6983.738, New Zealand 6954.711, Canada 6854.634,
	UUA	West Indies 6614.410,Germany 6612.440
2019	Trentham,	Australia 7028.773, Great Britain 6951.608, USA 6932.677, South
	NZ	Africa 6913.629, New Zealand 6827.555, Canada 6683.517,
		Channel Islands 6576.452

## Palma

2024 Bloemfontein Australia 7172.996\*, Great Britain 7168.1005, SA South Africa 7153.869, USA 7140.876, New Zealand 7030.703, Canada 6946.592, Germany 6683.456

\* Record score

## Palma

# Result for 2024

The Palma Trophy: Australia

	Day 1	Day 2	Total
1. Australia	3580.474	3592.552	7172.0996
2. Great Britain			
Captain:	Langley J.D.S.		
Adjutant:	Nelson G.P.		
Main Coach:	Richards W.C.P.		
Coaches:	Dowley S.A.J., Enso	r M.J., Lowe D.,	Tremlett C.N.
Reserves:	Cook H.A., Ball N.J.		
Armourer:	Rylands T.G.		
	Day 1	Day 2	Total
Luckman D.C.	225.032	225.035	450.067
Furniss R.L.	225.028	225.039	450.067
Underwood J.C		225.034	450.061
Evans C.A.	224.032	225.036	449.068
Patel P.M.	225.030	224.036	449.066
Barnett G.C.D.	224.032	225.034	449.066
Mitchell C.J.	224.030	225.035	449.065
Healy N.T.	224.028	225.030	449.058
Dodds T.H.D.	223.034	225.040	448.074
Armstrong D.R		225.031	448.066
Sykes P.D.	223.021	225.035	448.056
Shouler R.S.F.	225.034	222.030	447.064
Button M.C.J.	223.030	224.032	447.062
Watson J.A.	222.023	225.031	447.054
Raincock T.J.D		222.028	446.054
Kent J.C.T.	219.027	223.030	442.057
Totals	3578.469	3590.536	7168.1005
3. South Africa	3562.405	3591.464	7153.0869
4. USA	3548.412	3592.464	7140.0876
5. New Zealand 6. Canada	3491.305	3539.398	7030.0703
	3451.267	3495.325	6946.0592
7. Germany	3293.223	3390.242	6683.0465

# **Captains and Adjutants**

#### Captain

# Adjutant

	ouptuin
1992	Cheshire C.C.C.
1995	Cheshire C.C.C.
1999	Chown A.
2003	Belither S.
2007	Townsend M.K.
2011	Webster J.G.M.
2015	Messer J.H.

Carmichael J.H. Tucker A.St.G. Walton M.W.T. Aspin A.F. Ball N.J. Ramsey K.W.D. Crispin D.C. Palma

Captain

2019 Calvert D.P. 2024 Langley J.D.S. Adjutant Hockley C.J. Nelson G.P.

# Coaches

This section lists those who have coached in the Palma match from 2000. Main coaches are denoted by a lower case m after the date.

# English

Cleveland S.L. – 2003 Dowley S.A.J. – 2024 Ensor M.J. – 2007, 11, 15, 19, 24 Hinchliffe P.N. – 2003m, 07m Kent P.G. – 1995, 03 Langley J.D.S. – 1999, 07, 11, 15 Lowe D. – 2019, 24 Messer J.H. – 2011 Richards W.C.P. – 1992, 95, 03, 15, 24m Roberts R.M. – 2007, 15 Tremlett C.N. – 1999, 19m, 24 Winney B.J. – 2019

# lrish

Townsend, M.K. – 2003, 11m, 15m

# Scottish

Charlton M.J.J. - 2007, 11, 17

## **Shooters and Reserves**

This section lists those who have shot or been reserve for Great Britain in the Palma match from 2000. Suffix r denotes reserve.

# English

Armstrong D.R. - 2007, 11, 15, 19, 24 Ball N.J. - 2003, 11, 15, 19, 24r Barnett G.C.D. - 1992, 95, 99, 03, 24 Brasier N. - 2007, 11 Button M.C.J. - 2003r, 19, 24 Cload J. - 2003, 07, 11 Coleman D.G.M. - 1992, 95, 99, 03 Cook H.A. - 2024r Crispin. D.C. - 2019 Day H.A. - 2015r Dix R.A. - 2007 Drysdale T.M. - 2015, 19 Dyson D.C. - 2007 East S.J. - 2015 Furniss R.L. - 2024 Holden P.J.R. - 2007 Jeens R.C.T. - 2007, 11 Kent J.C.T. - 2024 Luckman A.J. - 1995, 99, 03, 07 Luckman D.C. - 1999, 03, 07, 11, 15, 19, 24 Millar M.R.M. - 2015r, 19 Mitchell C.J. - 2024 Messer J.H. - 1992, 95, 99, 03, 07, 19 Patel P.M. - 1999, 03, 07, 11, 15, 19, 24 Pilgrim A.J. - 2003

Pugsley J. – 1995, 03 Raincock T.J.D. – 2007, 11, 15, 19, 24 Ramsey K.W.D. – 2019r Ringer T.A. – 1992, 95, 99, 03, 11 Rose D.A. – 2015, 19 Rylands T.G. – 1999, 03, 11, 15, 19r Shouler R.S.F. – 2019, 24 Stewart R. – 2007 Sykes P.D. – 2011, 24 Tapster J.P. – 2015 Tremlett C.N. – 1992, 11r Watson J.A. – 2007, 11, 15, 19, 24 Webster J.G.M. – 1999, 03 Underwood J.C – 1999, 03, 07, 11, 15, 19, 24

# Irish

Alexander J.W. – 2019 Calvert D.P. – 1992, 95, 99, 03, 07, 11, 15 Healy N.T. – 2024 McQuillan R. – 2007, 11

# Scottish

Ogilvie A.M.G. – 2003r Shaw I.T.G. – 1999, 03 McLeod A.R. – 2015 Walker A.N.R. – 2019

# Welsh

Dodds T.H.D. – 2024 Evans C.A. – 2024 Morris G.E. – 2007r, 11 Watson C.J. – 2011, 15

# 300m Events

# 300m Championship

This is a 60 shot prone event for free rifle under ISSF/UIT rules and shot concurrent with the NRA British 300m Championship at Bisley. Entries to this event should be made direct to the NRA.

# Past Winners

2000	Hawarth G.	2013	Aldhouse S.K.
2001	Campbell A.T.	2014	Hawarth G.
2002	Aldhouse S.K.	2015	Scrivens M.
2003	Aldhouse S.K.	2016	Aldhouse S.K.
2004	Campbell A.T.	2017	Aldhouse S.K.
2005	Aldhouse S.K.	2018	Hammond T.P.
2006	Aldhouse S.K.	2019	Aldhouse S.K.
2007	Pearse M.J. (Pugsley)	2020	No competition
2008	Hawarth G.	2021	Aldhouse S.K.
2009	Aldhouse S.K.	2022	Aldhouse S.K.
2010	Aldhouse S.K.	2023	Wilde A.R.
2011	Aldhouse S.K.	2024	Wilde A.R.

2012 Hawarth G.

# Result for 2024

The NRA British 300m Championships were shot on 21-22 July. The result for the English Twenty Club 300m Championship was as follows:

- 1. Wilde A.R. 589.24
- 2. Fowke R. 588.19

# 300m Shooting

The 300m rifle discipline is organised by the GB300m Rifle Club who own the Electronic targets in use on the 300m range, which is located at the left hand end of the shed on Century range. The 300m range is only available 12 weekends a year; dates for competitions and training can be found on the GB300m club web site:

http://www.gb300m.com.

There are ten lanes of KME electronic targets; all shots are plotted on a monitor next to the shooter and a printout is available at the end of the shoot.

# 300m Events

The GB 300m club runs a number of competitions over the year, the majority of which are 60 shots prone, but three positional shooting is permitted.A 60 shots prone match has the following format:

- 15 minutes preparation time, dry firing is allowed.
- 15 minutes sighting time, unlimited sighting shots are allowed.
- The stop command is given, the targets are cleared by the range officer and you are given the command to start your match.
- No more sighters, 60 shots to count in 60minutes.

The range is the premier 300m range in the country. The NRA and English Twenty Club championships, trials and training for the 300m GB team, and visiting European teams are just some of the events held during the year. All events and results can be found on the GB300m club web site.

The GB 300m club is the home of the GB international team, which competes in ISSF events including World and European Championships and European Cup competitions.

Teams and individuals competed for Great Britain in three Lapua European Cups, the Lapua European Cup final and the European Championships.

Winners of the 300m domestic competitions are posted on the GB 300m club web site.

The range is available to non-members on dates where the range is available for training; it can be booked through info@GB300m.com. It is the ideal place to practise even if you normally shoot outside.

# **F-Class Events**

# The F-Class International Team Match

The match was held during the 2024 Imperial meeting at Bisley.

1. The F-Class International Team Match: Germany

		900	1000	Total	
1.Germany		177.04	173.04	350.08	
2.England					
Captain:	Stewart D.A.				
Coach:	Reynolds T.				
		900	1000	Total	
Price A.J.		47.03	46.03	93.06	
Harkins P.J.H.		44.03	47.02	91.05	
Groves L.		43.01	42.01	85.02	
Waugh G.P.		40.02	40.01	80.03	
Totals		174.09	175.07	349.16	

# GR Events Gallery Rifle Division

The 2024 season offered a full range of England shooting for both our rifle and pistol shooters. Pistol shooting - LBP and LBR - is gaining year on year traction within the division and we are regularly fielding full teams for our matches with the Scottish and Welsh. Flagship meetings of the Phoenix and the GR&P Nationals were as popular as ever. The three home nation events away from Bisley which traditionally attract enough interest for decent competitive matches in all gun types are continuing to be successful and well attended.

The HCNM match at the GR&P Nationals was regained by England. After a Scottish victory in 2023 this was welcomed but the competition was tight. The detailed results, if studied, show the two gun types (GRSB and GRCF) impacting the overall scores at different levels.

The general popularity of the Phoenix attracts the most shooters with overseas visitors from Germany and Ireland adding to the mix.

# GR Events

Away from Bisley the JSPC Spring Open is the early season event and has proven popular for England touting teams in the last few seasons.

At Derby, a very popular Summer event a full home countries rifle match takes place between the three home nations.

An Irish team sometimes join us for the Welsh shoot at Haverfordwest in early August. This mid Summer event is sometimes used to experiment with other head to head formats but this season we reverted to the traditional T&P1 and Multi-Target affair

Our new captain for 2024, Steve Lane, continues in the role for 2025 with David Morrow as Vice Captain.

From an administrative perspective Neil Francis will continue as Gallery Rifle Division superintendent.

# **Gallery Rifle Matches**

# International Team Matches at the Phoenix Meeting

# This was held on 23-26 May 2024.

## Result for 2024

	GRCF			GRSB	
1.	England Red	1660.134	1.	England Red	1650.097
2.	Scotland Blue	1653.137	2.	England Blue	1647.113
3.	England Blue	1647.136	3.	Scotland Blue	1640.101
4.	Northern Ireland	1636.081	4.	Scotland White	1572.063
5.	Scotland White	1634.099	5.	Northern Ireland	1542.058

# Scotland v England v Wales

#### at JSPC Galashields, 5-7 April 2024

		GRSB	GRCF	Aggregate	
1.	England	1631.096	1652.120	England	3283.216
2.	Scotland	1612.091	1646.123	Scotland	3258.214
3.	Wales	1610.092	1644.121	Wales	3254.213

# GR Events England v Wales v Scotland at Derby RPC, 28-30 June 2024

	GRSB		GF	RCF	Aggregate	
1.	Wales	1651.124	England	1662.145	England	3308.269
2.	Scotland	1647.124	Wales	1642.121	Wales	3293.245
3.	England	1646.104	Scotland	1641.092	Scotland	3288.216

# Wales v England

# at Haverfordwest, 2-4 August 2024

#### T&P1/M-T matches

		GRSB	GRCF	Aggregate	
1.	England	2059.147	2064.176	England	4123.293
2.	Wales	2037.112	2027.129	Wales	4064.241

## The GR Home Countries National Match Results Summary

2009	England	3293.130	Wales	3260.117	Scotland	3208.087
2010	England	3306.256	Wales	3272.202	Scotland	3255.194
2011	England	3307.221	Scotland	3276.204	Wales	3223.165
2012	England	3287.215	Scotland	3263.178		
2013	Wales	3292.221	England	3278.203	Scotland	3268.198
2014	England	3307.249	Wales	3286.227	Scotland	3275.211
2015	Wales	3313.242	Scotland	3292.221	England	3282.197
2016	Wales	3310.240	England	3304.224	Scotland	3296.212
2017	Scotland	3305.216	Wales	3304.247	England	3290.244
2018	England	3308.234	Wales	3292.216	Scotland	3266.205
2019	England	3324.243	Wales	3310.241	Scotland	3279.185
2020		Ma	atch in Abeya	ince		
2021	England	3313.232	Wales	3289.225	Scotland	3288.230
2022	England	3278.219	Scotland	3254.179	Wales*	3303.238
2023	Scotland	3297.223	England	3258.224	Wales	3199.165
2024	England	3286.211	Wales	3272.206	Scotland	3270.207

# GR Events

# Result for 2024

This match was held at Bisley on 1st September 2024

# 1. England

2. 3.

Captain:	Steve Lane		
GRSB	Timed & Precision	Multi-target	Total
Keith Kilvington	299.18	112.11	411.29
Amiel Gardiner	297.06	114.12	411.18
Michael Deakin	291.08	115.08	406.16
Steve Lane	295.09	109.09	404.18
Keith Edwards	294.16	109.10	403.26
		Total	1632.081
GRCF	Timed &	Multi-target	Total
	Precision		
Oscar Deakin	300.23	116.15	416.38
David Morrow	298.20	116.12	414.32
Lee Townsend	299.21	114.11	413.32
Peter Watts	299.21	112.07	411.28
Malcolm Stewart	297.17	114.06	411.23
		Total	1654.130
		Grand Total	3286.211
Wales			3272.206
Scotland			3270.207

# GR Events LBP and LBR Matches

# International Team Matches at the Phoenix Meeting

This was held on 23-26 May 2024.

# **Results for 2024**

	LBP			LBR	
1.	England Blue	1645.110	1.	England	1584.64
2.	England Red	1643.101	2.	Scotland	1553.55
3.	Scotland Blue	1595.080	3.		
4.	Northern Ireland	1544.054			
5.	Scotland White	1469.031			

# **Scotland v Englandv Wales**

## at JSPC, Galashiels, 5-7 April 2024

		LBP	LBR	Aggregate	
1.	England	1631.090	1585.064	England	3216.154
2.	Scotland	1616.077	1579.060	Scotland	3159.137
3.	Wales	1286.051	1111.034	Wales	2397.085

# England v Wales v Scotland

at Derby RPC, 28-30 June 2024

		LBP		LBR	
1.	England		<u>1655.124</u>	Scotland	<u>1584.066</u>
2.	Wales		1617.075	England	1494.036
3.	Scotland		1610.071	Wales	395.015

# **National Championships**

at Bisley, 1 September 2024

		LBP	LBR		
1.	England	1653.117	Scotland	1596.070	
2.	Scotland	1641.106	England	1583.072	

# GR Events Captains and Adjutants

	Captain	Adjutant
2009	Brown N. no longer member	Harris D.J.
2010	Brown N. no longer member	Harris D.J.
2011	Francis N.J.	No appointment
2012	Francis N.J.	No appointment
2013	Francis N.J.	No appointment
2014	West S.L. no longer member	Smith J.M.
2015	Van Dalen M.	Podevin A.C.
2016	Van Dalen M.	Podevin A.C.
2017	Van Dalen M.	Podevin A. C.
2018	Guest D.	Bowden G.
2019	Guest D.	Bowden G.
2020	Guest D.	Bowden G.
2021	Guest D.	Bowden G.
2022	Guest D.	Bowden G.
2023	Guest D	Bowden G.
2024	Lane S	Morrow D.

## **Home Countries National Match Shooters**

This section lists those who have shot for England in the Gallery Rifle National Match from 2009. (2020 match in abeyance). These shooters qualify for EXX full colours. Suffix co denotes counted out.

Bowden G. – 2016. 17, 19, 21, 22 Chinery M. – 2009, 10co no longer member Cotton P.M. – 2009, 11, 12, 13 no longer member Cooney P. – 2015, 16co no longer member Cox I.S. – 2012co, 13 Cox K.W. – 2009, 10, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18 Dagger A. – 2011 Deakin M. – 2024 Deakin O. – 2024 Digby D. – 2009, 10 no longer member Eastwood D. – 2016, 17 no longer member Edwards K. – 2024co Forster A. – 2015co Green D. – 2010 Guest D.J. – 2014co, 15co, 16, 17, 18co, 19co, 21, 22, 23 Hackett D. – 2009, 10, 11, 12, 14 Hannam M. – 2013 no longer member Horner – 2023 Jordan S. – 2022 Kilvington K. – 2017, 18, 19, 21, 22, 23, 24 Lamb S.D. – 2009, 10, 11, 12, 15, 16co, 18

## GR Events

Lane S. -2021, 22, 23co, 24 McMichael C.I. -2014, 15, 16, 18co Milsom P.. -2009Morrow D. -2019, 21co, 22co, 23co, 24 Mossom J. -2018, 19, 21, 23 Peppitt M. -2015, 15 Podevin A.C. -2013co, 18, 19 Shine J. -2013Smith J.M. -2010, 11co, 12, 13co, 14, 15, 16, 19co Starley J. -2019Stewart M. -2022, 23, 24co Stockill P. -2009, 13 Thompson C.M. – 2012co, 13, 17 Townsend L. – 2022co, 23, 24 Van Dalen M. – 2009co, 10co, 11co, 13, 14co, 15, 16, 17, 18, 21, 23 Warwick, L. – 2021co Watts P. – 2009co, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 21, 22, 23, 24 West C.J. – 2011, 12, 13, 14, 22 no longer member West S.– 2012, 13 no longer member Wood P. – 2018, 19, 21 Wylde D. – 2010, 11 no longer member

# **Phoenix International Match Shooters**

This section lists those who have shot for England in the Phoenix International Rifle Matches from 2019. (2020 matches in abeyance). These shooters qualify for EXX half colours. Suffix co denotes counted out.

Archer I. -2023, 24Bowden G. -2019, 21, 22Cox K. -2019coDagger A. -2019Deakin M. -2024Edwards K. -2024Francis N. -2021Fox J -2021coGuest D. -2019, 21, 23coKilvington K. -2019, 21, 22, 23, 24Lamb J. -2019, 21coLamb S. -2021coLane S. -2021, 22  $\begin{array}{l} \mbox{McMichael C.} - 2019co \\ \mbox{Morrow D.} - 2019, 21, 24 \\ \mbox{Mossom J.} - 2019, 21, 23, 24co \\ \mbox{Podevin A.} - 2021 \\ \mbox{Podevin G.} - 2021 \\ \mbox{Starley J.} - 2019 \\ \mbox{Stewart M} - 2023, 24 \\ \mbox{Smith J.} - 2023co \\ \mbox{Townsend L.} - 2022co, 24 \\ \mbox{Van Dalen, M.} - 2019, 21, 22, 24 \\ \mbox{Watts P.} - 2019co, 23, 24 \\ \mbox{West C.} - 2019, 21, 22 \\ \mbox{Wood P.} - 2019 \end{array}$ 

## Phoenix International LBR and LBP Shooters

This section lists those who have shot for England in the Phoenix International LBR and LBP matches from 2022 onwards. These shooters qualify for EXX Pistol and Revolver half colours. Suffix co denotes counted out

Archer I - 2023, 24 Bowden G. – 2022 Guest D. – 2023 Horner C. – 2024 Jones N. – 2022, 23co Jordan S. – 2022, 24 Lamb S. – 2023co Lane S. – 2022, 23, 24 Matthews P. – 2022co Morrow D. – 2022, 24 van Dalen, M. - 2022, 23, 24

Smith J. – 2023, 24co Stockill P. – 2022, 23 Townsend L. – 2022co, 24

# List of Members for 2024 General Data Protection Regulation

The English Twenty Club conforms to the provisions of the General Data Protection Regulation. Personal information is collected, stored and shared in accordance with the Club's Privacy Policy, a copy of which can be seen on the Club's web site in the Members section.

Since the 2010 yearbook, only members' names and, where permission has been given, email addresses are published. District and Divisional Superintendents may request a full list from the Membership Secretary. Members are reminded that these addresses are included to assist with organising and managing the Club's affairs and must only be used for relevant Club shooting purposes. Members using the email lists for other purposes risk disciplinary action by the Club. Members who need more detail should contact their DS or DvS.

## Membership statistics for 2024 at 31st December

Number of paid up members including life members	639
Number of life members	145
Number of Under 25 members	59

# List of Members by District

#### Key to symbols

- S Silver
- B Bronze
- XB Bronze jewel awarded for young or novice shooters

The subscription for 2025 is £15.

Changes for the 2026 list of members must be notified to the Honorary Membership Secretary by 1 September 2025.

## Bedfordshire

District Superintendent – dsbeds@englishtwenty.org.uk Dawes P.

2024 Jewels: not enough members

## Berkshire

District Superintendent – dsberks@englishtwenty.org.uk Fugeman M.R.

2024 Jewels: Mitchell C.J. (S), Shaw T. (B), Dickenson C.E.S. (B), Weinburger R. (XB)

Buckinghamshire

District Superintendent – dsbucks@englishtwenty.org.uk Bedwell T.L.

2024 Jewels: not enough members

## Cambridgeshire

District Superintendent – dscambs@englishtwenty.org.uk Jenvey M.D.

2024 Jewels: No competition held

## Cheshire

District Superintendent – dscheshire@englishtwenty.org.uk Fitzsimons Miss T.J.

2024 Jewels: Craig B.N. (S), O'Brien S.P. (B), Webster J.G.M. (B)

## Cornwall

District Superintendent – dscornwall@englishtwenty.org.uk Position vacant

2024 Jewels: not enough members

## Derbyshire

District Superintendent – dsderby@englishtwenty.org.uk Position vacant

2024 Jewels: not enough members

#### Devon

District Superintendent – dsdevon@englishtwenty.org.uk Childs G.C.

2024 Jewels: No competition held

#### Dorset

District Superintendent – dsdorset@englishtwenty.org.uk, Davison I.P.

2024 Jewels: not enough members

#### Essex

District Superintendent – dsessex@englishtwenty.org.uk Penrose S.N.S.

2024 Jewels: No competition held

## Gloucestershire

District Superintendent – dsgloucs@englishtwenty.org.uk Blythe M.

2024 Jewels: No competition held

Hampshire

District Superintendent – dshants@englishtwenty.org.uk Mace Mrs L.K.

2024 Jewels: Mace L.K. (S), Brooks C.M. (B), Prout J. (XB)

## Herefordshire and Worcestershire

District Superintendent – dsworcs@englishtwenty.org.uk Clewer M

2024 Jewels: not enough members

## Hertfordshire

District Superintendent – dsherts@englishtwenty.org.uk Tompson A.T.B.

2024 Jewels: No competition held

#### Kent

District Superintendent – dskent@englishtwenty.org.uk Weeden C.P.

2024 Jewels: Bromley P.B. (S), Weeden C.P. (B), Smith D.A.(B)

## Lancashire

District Superintendent – dslancs@englishtwenty.org.uk Goad C.P.

2024 Jewels: Young D.G. (S), Bramwell G.P.C. (B), Crisp L. (B), Smith L. (XB)

## Lincolnshire

District Superintendent – dslincs@englishtwenty.org.uk Button M.C.J.

2024 Jewels: No competition held

## London

District Superintendent – dslondon@englishtwenty.org.uk Cole-Hawkins N.

2024 Jewels: de Vere D.A. (S), Hebblethwaite R.A.V. (B), Warren R.R. (B)

## Middlesex

District Superintendent – dsmiddlesex@englishtwenty.org.uk Lloyd D.C.W.

2024 Jewels: No competition held

## Norfolk

District Superintendent – dsnorfolk@englishtwenty.org.uk Bullen A.M.

2024 Jewels: No competition held

# Northamptonshire, Leicestershire and Rutland

District Superintendent – dsnorthants@englishtwenty.org.uk Stuart-Bamford E.

2024 Jewels: No competition held

# Northumberland and Durham

District Superintendent – dsdurham@englishtwenty.org.uk Stevenson G.

2024 Jewels: Trembath J.G. (S), Milner K. (B)

# Nottinghamshire

District Superintendent – dsnotts@englishtwenty.org.uk Rosling R.P.

2024 Jewels: No competition held

# Oxfordshire

District Superintendent – dsoxon@englishtwenty.org.uk Silver M.W.

2024 Jewels: No competition held

## Somerset

District Superintendent – dssomerset@englishtwenty.org.uk Luckman I.F.

2024 Jewels: No competition held

## Suffolk

District Superintendent – dssuffolk@englishtwenty.org.uk Ball A.J.

2024 Jewels: No competition held

## Surrey

District Superintendent – dssurrey@englishtwenty.org.uk Smith P.R.

2024 Jewels: Ensor M.J. (S), Patel P.M. (B), Bellringer J.E.M. (B), Hill K.B. (B)

#### Sussex

District Superintendent – dssussex@englishtwenty.org.uk Messer Miss J.H.

2024 Jewels: No competition held.

## Warwickshire, Staffordshire and Shropshire

District Superintendent – dswarwicks@englishtwenty.org.uk Kelly P.G.

2024 Jewels: No competition held

#### Wiltshire

District Superintendent – dswilts@englishtwenty.org.uk Brown I.R.M.

2024 Jewels: No competition held

## Yorkshire

District Superintendent – dsyorks@englishtwenty.org.uk Hirst R.C.

2024 Jewels: Stevens J.P.M. (S), Morris D. (B), Gorvette T. (XB)

#### **300 metre Division**

District Superintendent – ds300m@englishtwenty.org.uk Warren R.

## **English Pistol Association Division**

District Superintendent – dsepa@englishtwenty.org.uk Levene D.A.

## F Class Division

District Superintendent – dsfclass@englishtwenty.org.uk Kent D.N.

**Gallery Rifle Division** 

District Superintendent – galleryrifle@englishtwenty.org.uk Francis N.J.

# **School and Cadet Unit Affiliations**

The following school and cadet units have affiliated to the English Twenty Club:

Council for Cadet Rifle Shooting Framlingham School Greshams School

# Index

000 1 1: : :	07
300 metre division	97
300m	83
Accounts	17
AGM Minutes	26
Approval of Membership	10
Badges	29
Bedfordshire	93
Berkshire	93
Bisley Clubhouse	14
Buckinghamshire	94
Bye-laws	10
Cambridgeshire	94
Caps	29
Cheshire	94
Club Rules	5
Commonwealth Games.2018	65
Cornwall	94
Derbyshire	94
Devon	94
District and Division Jewels	11
Dorset	94
Durham	96
Election Procedure for District and	
Divisional Superintendents	10
England Touring Teams Rolls	66
English Target Shooting Federation	3
English Twenty Club Prize Meeting	30
EPA Division	97
Essex	94
European Long Range Team Champio	nship
	62
captains and adjutants	62
coaches	63
shooters	63
F Class Division	97
Fixtures	4
Gallery Rifle Division	97
GB Matches	73
Gloucestershire	94
Hampshire	95
Herefordshire	95
Hertfordshire	95
Honorary Secretaries	3
Kent	95
Kolapore	73
captains and adjutants	75
coaches	77
result	75
ICOUL	15

shooters	77
Lancashire	95
Lawrence Match	57
captains and adjutants	58
coaches	59
result	58
shooters	59
Leicestershire	96
Lincolnshire	95
London	95
Mackinnon	51
captains and adjutants	53
coaches	54
result	53
shooters	54
Match v Combined Services and Home	• .
Countries	71
Match v Welsh XX Club	72
Matches v RAFTRC, Scotland and Wales	
69, 70,	
Members list	93
Members residing overseas	97
Merchandise	29
Middlesex	95
National	55
captains and adjutants	45
coaches	46
Council of	3
quidelines	44
result	44
	41
shooters	47
National Rifle Association	14
Norfolk	96
Northamptonshire	90 96
Northumberland	90 96
	90 96
Nottinghamshire	90 96
Oxfordshire Palma	90 78
	70 80
captains and adjutants	
coaches	81
result	80
shooters	81
Polo shirts	29
Presidents	3
President's Report	15
Prize Winners	11

Protection of Children and Vulnerable	•
Adults	14
Rutland	96
School and Cadet Unit Affiliations	11, 97
Secretary's Report	22, 25
Selection of England Team Captains	12
Shooting Disciplines	10
Shoulder flashes	29
Shropshire	97
Somerset	96
Spring Meeting	30
Staffordshire	97

Subscriptions	10
Suffolk	96
Surrey	96
Sussex	97
Ties	29
Treasurer's Report	20
Under 25 Home Countries Invitation	Match
	65
Warwickshire	97
Wiltshire	97
Wiltshire Worcestershire	97 95

# English Twenty Club Merchandise Order Form

You may photocopy this form or download one from the web site. Prices include postage and packing

Item	No.	· ·	Size/col	Paid £
Club blazer badge		£15.00		
Blazer button – large silver		£3.00		
Blazer button – small silver		£3.00		
Pin badge - circular		£7.00		
Lapel badge		£5.00		
Club spoon		£20.00		
Club pullover (L, XL, XL)		£35.00		
Club sweatshirt (S, M)		£25.00		
The following may or (see page 28 of				
TR team blazer badge		£15.00		
GR team blazer badge		£15.00		
U25 team blazer badge		£6.00		
Team tie		£23.00		
Team cravat		£23.00		
Team Bow tie		£23.00		
Team cap (red or blue)		£13.00		
Blazer button – large gold		£6.00		
Blazer button – small gold		£6.00		
Team shoulder flash (pair)		£10.00		
Team pullover (S, M, L)		£15.00		
Team polo shirt (S, L, XL, XXL)		£25.00		
			Total	

To order anything please send an email to sales@englishtwenty.org.uk indicating which items you require together with size and colour if applicable. You will then be contacted to confirm availability, arrange delivery or collection and be given payment details.